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Cautionary Statement

This Annual Report and Financial Statements contains various forward-looking statements regarding events
and trends that are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual results and financial position
of the Group to differ materially from the information presented herein. When used in this report, the words
“estimate”, “project”, “intend”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “should” and simitar expressions, as they
relate to the Group, are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Save as
otherwise required by any rules or regulations, the Group does not undertake any obligations publicly to
release the result of any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after

the date herecf or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
The risks and uncertainties referred to above include:

- actions or decisions by governmental and regulatory bodies, or changes in the regulatory framework
in which the Group operates, which may impact the ability of the Group to carry on its businesses;

- changes or advances in technology, and availability of resources such as spectrum, necessary to use
new or existing technology, or customer and consumer preferences regarding technology;

- the performance of the markets in the UK, the EU, and the wider region in which the Group operates;

- the ability of the Group to realise the benefits it expects from existing and future projects and
investments it is undertaking or plans to or may undertake;

- the ability of the Group to develop, expand and maintain its media & broadcast and utilities network
infrastructure;

- the ability of the Group to obtain external financing or maintain sufficient capital to fund its existing
and future investments and projects;

- the Group’s dependency on only a limited number of key customers for a large percentage of its
revenue; and

- expectations as to revenues not under contract.

Guidance note to the Annual Report and Financial Statements:

In this document, references to ‘Argiva’ and ‘the Group’ refer to Argiva Group Limited (‘AGL’) and its subsidiaries and
markets as the context may require. References to the ‘Company’ refer to the results and performance of Argiva Group
Limited as a standalone entity.

A reference to a year expressed as 2023 is to the financial year ended 30 fune 2023. This convention applies similarly to
any reference to a previous or subsequent financial year. Additionally, references to ‘current year’, ‘this year’ and ‘the year’
are in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2023. References to the ‘prior year’ and 'last year’ are to the financial
year ended 30 June 2022.
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Arqiva at a glance - 2023

ENABLING A SWITCHED-ON WORLD TO FLOW

Who we are

In today’s switched-on world, companies — entire industries — are grappling with how to share
data and content across a myriad of connected devices. That’s where Argiva comes in.
Fundamentally, we're enablers. Behind the scenes, we apply our knowledge and expertise to stitch
together technologies that connect broadcasters, media companies and utilities to their

customers, and the content, data, information, and entertainment they want.

Our Infrastructure

c. 1,450
broadcast transmission sites in c. 1,150 TV transmission sites
the UK
Market leader for commercial
98.5%

of the UK population reached
through Freeview TV services

DTT! spectrum
owning two of the three national
commercial multiplexes

c.80 satellite dishes accessing
30+ satellites delivering TV
channels internationally to 5
continents

99.5% network coverage
across the North of England and
Scotland on our smart energy
networks

10 million premises
can connect to our smart meter
networks

50 million data points
delivered on our smart metering
networks every day

! Refers to Digital Terrestrial Television best known for supporting Freeview
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What we do

In today’s ever-eveolving world, the demand for information, content and entertainment is greater than ever.
We all want to be connected 24/7. This is the challenge that our media and broadcast customers are facing,
delivering more content an more devices than ever before.

At Argiva, we are enablers, applying our knowledge and expertise to technologies to unlock new opportunities
for our customers. We work in partnership, building and operating the infrastructure through which data and
content can flow effectively, securely, and sustainably.

The Group is the UK's pre-eminent national provider of television and radio broadcast infrastructure and
provides end-to-end connectivity solutions in the media and utility industries. The Group is also a leading
provider of sateliite uplink infrastructure and satellite distribution services in the UK in terms of the number of
channels available for UK DTH satellite broadcast. The Group has been an early and leading participant in the
development of smart utility infrastructure in the UK through its smart water and energy metering services and
provides satellite connectivity services for electricity networks.

Argiva operates through two main commercial functions, Media and Broadcast and Smart Utility Networks
supported by non-revenue generating Operations, Technology and Corporate functions.

Key Strategic ambitions

Undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast

Transition global media to cloud solutions

UK’s leading smart utilities platform

Innovator of scalable solutions for new
connectivity sectors
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Highlights

Media and broadcast have benefited from RPI-linked contract increases, offsetting decreases in DTT multiplexes
and managed broadcast services due to the full year effect of lower pricing on renewals. Growth in water
metering products revenues is driven by strong energy device sales across our smart utilities networks. Further
revenue increases in the year due to one-off receipts following Cellnex transactions on sites linked to the former
telecoms business. With the transformation programme now complete the Group is focused on driving
simplification to buitding a sustainable business with a focus on diversification into new products to better
support our customers.
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EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and includes ada-backs for certain
items charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA
to operating profit is presented on page 29.

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net cash flows from operating
activities less cash flows fram investing activities per the cash flow statement excluding interest received. See page 30 for a reconciliation
to cash inflow from aperating activities.

Key financials in the year:

- Revenue increase of 4.4%, but with lower margins resulting in an EBITDA reduction of 0.4% compared
to the prior year however operating profit has increased 64.9%

- Increases in revenue, EBITDA and operating profit from broadcast TV and radio broadcast distribution
products with RPI-linked contracts

- Decreased revenue due to the full year effect of lower renewal pricing on the main DTT multiplexes.
Channel utilisation remains strong returning to 100% at 30 June 2023

- Increase in customer services credits arising from the fire on the Bilsdale site negatively impacting
revenue (2023: £15.3m; 2022: £7.6m)

- Continued delivery of the smart energy metering contracts across the North of England and Scotland
with fully rolled out network coverage of 99.5% and increased device sales

- Increase in revenue from the continued ramp-up of activity on smart water metering networks and
increased water device sales.

- One-off revenue and cash receipt following Cellnex transactions on former telecoms sites
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Key influences on revenue
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Group revenue has increased 4.4% year on year. These movements are demonstrated in the following

waterfall revenue chart:
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Key Influences on EBITDA

The following waterfall chart demonstrates the year-on-year impact of total EBITDA for the Group reflecting
the key financial factors:

Commercial:

- Media and Broadcast: Improved financial performance in core TV and radio products arising from RPI-
linked contracts partially offset by pricing pressures on the main DTT multiplexes. EBITDA margins have
also been impacted by increased power costs reflecting market volatility of power prices.

- Smart Utilities Networks: Increased activity across both energy metering and growth in water metering
device sales as well as one-offs from the Cellnex transaction.

Other functions:

- Increased costs and expense recoveries due to a greater mix of expense project activity being worked
on by the teams.

- Further increases in costs driven by investment in the simplification team as we move to the next stage
of our cost improvement journey following the completion of the transformation programme. Much of
these staff costs would previously have been included in other teams across the business.

- Lower gain year on year from modifications on lease contracts under IFRS 16 accounting

400
390
380 -
370

0 i
MR

350

340 1

330

320

310 !

Media Smart Ltllities  Operations  Technology & Corporate Simplificatron  Gain onlease 2023 reported
Distribution Netwaorks Transficrmation modifications
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Chairman’s Introduction

Querview

Arqgiva has delivered a strong performance in 2023, despite the global challenges and continued economic
uncertainties being faced, particularly inflation and elevated power costs.

During the year, Argiva completed the delivery of its system transformation programme and now moves on to
focus on simplifying its processes for efficient operations and being able to meet the changing demands and
needs of its customers.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our people for their continued dedication and hard work in the
provision of our services,

Change in Shareholder

In October 2022, Digital 9 infrastructure {“DS”) completed its acquisition of Canada Pension Pian Investment
Board's (CPPIB) entire 48% stake in Argiva. D9 is a dedicated infrastructure investor, headquartered in the UK
with significant experience in the infrastructure industry and holds sustainability at the centre of its investment
strategy. This change in shareholder has not impacted the day-to-day operations of the business as the Group
caontinues to focus on its Vision 2031 Strategy.

Changes in the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has undergone significant change in the year. Following the D9 purchase, they have
elected representatives to the Board, with the CPPIB appointed directors resigning at the same time. Having
heen a member of the Board since 2018, | am delighted to have been appointed Chairman in February 2023. |
would iike to take this opportunity to thank our previous Chairman, Mike Parton, who stepped down in February,
far his work in this role.

with D9 joining as a shareholder and the growth priorities of the business, the Board has taken the opportunity
1o look at the skills and experience required from the directors with many new appointments as a result. Joining
me on the Board are Arnaud Jaguin, Andy Macleod and Matthew Postgate as representatives for D9, and Scott
Longhurst for IFM, wha joins as our Audit and Risk Committee Chair.

Sustainability

At a Board level, we are keen to truly understand our climate and sustainability risks, opportunities and strategy
and buitd this into the day-to-day operations of the business.

To achieve our sustainability targets, this year the Board approved an Environmental Sustainability Policy
(https://arqgiva.com/documentation/safety-health-and-environment/SHE-PY-

004%20E nvironmental%20Sustainahility%20Policy. pdf ), and our sustainability charter (set out on page 25) to
establish information flows and respensibilities across the organisation, incfuding tracking climate-related risks
and opportunities ensuring sustainability principles and goals are embedded into the business processes. Arqgiva
has also established a series of possible initiatives with the potential to deliver Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions
reductions over the medium term, along with outline funding provisions.

The approved Sustainability Programme is guiding and directing Argiva’s sustainability plans and has established
the information flows and respaonsibilities across the organisation, including tracking cfimate-related risks and
opportunities in order to ensure sustainability principles and goais are embedded into business processes. For
more details on the Sustainability Programme see information on page 25.

The Operational Resilience sub-committee has the key oversight of the sustainability programmes, with a
sustainability working group repaorting their findings.
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Refinancing

During the year the Group has completed the refinancing of its £625m junior bond as well as issuing a new US
private placement of $118m. The Group also completed the issue of £250m public bond post year end in July,
with proceeds utilised to repay existing term debt. This refinancing of nearly £1bn continues to underpin the
strength of the business and extends debt maturity with the earliest debt maturity now due in 2028.

Market Outloock

The business is operating in ever-changing markets, providing opportunities for diversification as well as changes
to the core markets in which the business is working to secure the longevity of Broadcast. During the year the
business secured an extension to its DAB licences with Ofcom extending these to 2035. By continuing to engage
with key stakeholders, the business is working to secure long-term solutions for the industry. This includes
collaboration with 30 other organisations including charities, membership organisations and broadcasters on
the Broadcast 2040+ campaign in efforts to safeguard DTT and broadcast radio to 2040 and beyond. The
upcoming World Radiocommunication Conference in November 2023 will also have an impact on the future
allocation of spectrum to different technologies and services, although no change is expected for the existing
Broadcast spectrum.

The business has also actively participated in the consultations with water companies for the price review 2024
methodology which underpins the accelerated investment in smart meters and draft water resource
management plans which support our utilities business growth plans and the sustainability plans of our
customers.

These initiatives along with contracts achieved in new products that diversify the core business continue to
demonstrate Argiva’s importance in the market and growth opportunities going forward. Argiva is at the heart
of these industries and will continue to strive to support customers to achieve a sustainable future.

Mike Darcey
Chairman

September 2023
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Chief Executive’s Statement

Over recent years, we have faced a lot of change both within our business and the industries in which we
operate. During 2023, we completed our multi-year system transformation, embed a more agile operating
model enabled by a new organisation design and leadership capability focusing on new market opportunities.
Delivering on this is a step-change for the business and provides us with the best foundation to ensure both
resilience and growth.

Strategy and Performance

With strong fundamentals, and the resilience demonstrated in recent years despite the tough economic
backdrop, we remain an course for our Vision 2031 strategic journey. Our priorities for the 2023 year have been
to continue investing in growth capabilities whiist simplifying our processes to increase our speed-to-market and
be as efficient as possible. The execution of this is enabled by the strengthening of our culture; engaging and
empowering our people; using technology to transition to a more data-oriented company; investing in
compelling products and building partnerships to access new and growing markets.

Total revenue for the business increased by 4.4%. Whilst some of this is driven by the RPlindexation on some of
our TV and radio broadcast products, there has been growth in other areas, particularly in devices on our Utilities
contracts across both energy and water. To date over 1.5million devices have been delivered on water contracts
and 2.6miftion communications hubs for energy metering.

We continue to deliver on our core transmission and utility network markets with strong operational
perfaormance enabled by the investment in new systems. Alongside this, diversification of our product offering
is a real focus,

The recent launch of products like Argade and Argplex demonstrates how we are building on our existing
capabilities with a wider product range to better support customers and their needs. Arqade is a cloud-based
video content exchange product that enables media customers to send their channels to multiple platforms
across the world efficiently through cloud technology. This platform has commenced delivering feeds for NBC
Universal group and a further pipeline of opportunities is being built with other linear channel operators.
Argplex, the Group's first customer cloud multiplexing deployment, is also now launched and already supporting
disaster recovery systems for ITV.

In the Utilities market, we have continued proof of concepts in Leakage Detection with several customers as well
as developments in Sewage Level Monitoring with initial deployments utilising position in smart meter
deployment.

A refresh of the executive team is now complete with a much greater growth orientation in both skills and
experience. We welcomed Gaurav Jandwani and Mike Smith into the Executive Director roles for Media &
Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks respectively. These appointments align with the repositioning of the
commercial team to set us up for future success in existing as well as new markets. They were joined in the
summer by Dom Wedgwood as Chief Technology Officer and Nicola Philtips as Chief Legal Officer. All four come
with extensive and broad experience of driving digital technology transition.

We also de-risked the impact of macro headwinds for the medium term. Firstly, by establishing a strong hedging
strategy for energy and narrowing the downside exposure to high inflation by entering a collar for the swaps.
We then re-financed £345m of our debt during June and July in some of the most challenging macro conditions
in recent memory. By getting all this done now, it means we can focus on delivering the commercial strategy
over the next couple of years with fewer distractions.

Bilsdale

The fire at the Bilsdale transmitter mast on the North York Moor in August 2021 was a seminal moment for the
business. Alongside the activities to restore services in the area, we supported those who had been impacted.
This included setting up a call centre for the community and working with local charitable organisations to assist
those most vulnerable. We completed the rebuild of a permanent mast at the site and began TV transmission

iz
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services on 22 May 2023 with additional radio and mobile network services expected to go live in the coming
months. This new mast with a height of more than 300m {the 9% tailest structure in the UK) was a substantial
feat of engineering built in record time despite the challenging conditions.

As previously reported, our insurers have concluded their investigations. Precise findings have not been shared
and we are unable to comment in detail on these findings while the claims process is ongoing. By 30 June
2023, we had received £25m interim insurance proceeds. Post year end a final total settlement of £41m was
agreed with the final £16m received in August.

Sustainability

Given ambitions around sustainability and a drive 1o net zero, energy consumption is a key factor for us. With
current volatility and increases in the energy pricing markets, this also impacts Argiva’s cost base - something
we expect will continue in the coming years. In March 2023, our existing forward purchase energy contracts
ended, leaving us exposed to higher market prices. | am pleased that we have now entered a revised power
contract and trading approach securing 95% of our power requirements to March 2024 thereby mitigating
exposure to price volatility over this period, albeit at pricing levels that are 230% per unit cost higher than those
of 2023.

Argiva plays a critical role in the everyday lives of millions of households. It is important that we operate our
business and deliver our services in a sustainable way, especially given the environmental challenges we face as
a society. Everyone at Arqiva has a role to play individually and collectively. That is why we have set out a clear
set of commitments to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions, preserve our natural resources and provide
opportunities for biodiversity to flourish. See page 21 for further information on our sustainability targets.

Industry QOutlook

Last year saw the launch of the Broadcast 2040+ campaign, a coalition of organisations including Argiva, with
the aim of engaging with decision makers including Goverament, Ofcam and other key stakehalders across the
media sector. The objective was to secure a commitment that DTT and broadcast radio will be safeguarded to
2080 and beyond. The campaign provides a platform for supporting organisations to collaborate on policy
developments. During the year, this campaign has expanded to include 30 organisations including charities,
membership organisations, and broadcasters and highlights the criticality of terrestrial TV and radio to our
societies.

The World Radiocommunication Conference in November 2023 (WRC-23) allows for nations to come together
to agree how spectrum is altocated 1o different technologies and services. Ahead of this, the Government has
reiterated its view that millions of households rely on Digital Terrestrial TV and it expects this to continue aver
the next decade stating its preference for ‘no change’ to broadcasting’s spectrum allocation.

In the Utilities sector, Ofwat has finalised its price review 2024 methodology, which sets out expectations for
water companies’ 2025-2030 business plans. The Government has indicated support for smart metering,
outfining in its Environmental Improvement Plan 2023 where it will be exploring policy options to increase smart
metering through accelerated investment through to 2030. In addition, the Environment Agency has asked
water companies to roll-out smart meters more quickly and replace manual read meters in its review of draft
regional and water resources management plans. Argiva has taken an active role in consultation processes
providing compeliing empirical evidence for how smart meters can materially reduce both consumption and
leakage.

In the coming year, growth af the husiness cantinues to be a top priority. In a fast-evolving technaolagical world,
we will strive to continue delivering seamless connectivity in our core services whilst also working on the
diversification of our offerings by Jaunching new products. We will continue working with customers to
understand their requirements given the rapid change they are facing. This will be in conjunction with creating
a dialogue with policymakers to ensure there is the right environment to encourage long-term investment in
supporting our core industries in a sustainable way which provide a lifeline to millions of people around the
country.

Shuja Khan
Chief Executive Officer

13
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Business Overview

Enabling a switched-on world to flow

At the heart of Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks in the UK and abroad, Argiva provides critical
data, network, and communications services.

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, delivering critical connectivity.
We are building and operating the complex ecosystems and infrastructures through which data and content can
move effectively, securely and sustainably at scale — whether that's through media broadcasting and
transmission services, or smart netwarks for energy and water.

Argiva is the only national provider of terrestrial television and radio broadcasting and provides machine-to-
machine connectivity for smart metering within the utilities sector. Argiva has invested significantly allowing it
to develop its communications infrastructure and technology as markets evolve.

Argiva earns network access and transmission service revenues from its customers, as well as fees for
engineering services and new projects. Argiva’s services tend to be mission-critical for its customers, as well as
providing the network coverage necessary for the fulfilment of the universal service obligations (‘USQs’) for
terrestrial broadcast customers as set out in their operating licences from the UK government.

Whilst we have a small overseas footprint, Argiva’s assets, operations and markets are predominantly within
the UK and our business is driven from this region; therefore, we have minimal exposure to international markets
and foreign exchange.

Argiva has invested significantly into capital infrastructure and has £1.2bn of property, plant, and equipment
at 30 June 2023. The business is financed through a mixture of equity and long-term debt, with an average
maturity debt profile of over 4 years. The Group’s senior debt has an investment grade (BBB+) rating from
Standard and Poor's and BBB from Fitch.

Attractive UK communications infrastructure market
DTT {Freeview) TV platform covering 98.5% of the UK population

Analogue and DAB transmitters on radio sites provide coverage for up to 99% of the UK population

Smart networks deliver around 50 million data points every day

A market leader

Sole provider of terrestrial television network access (Freeview)
Qwner of 2 of the 3 national commercial multiplexes

Shareholder in, and operator for both commercial national DAB radio multiplexes and it is the service

provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex
One of only two communication service providers for smart energy meter connectivity in the UK
H——.|
e
High barriers to entry

Owner of critical natiohal UK infrastructure that enables Public Service Broadcasters (PSBs) to meet their

government mandated universal coverage obligations

Unigue and long-life asset base underpins the market leading positions that would not be economically
feasible to replicate

Long established relationships with its customers spanning more than 80 years
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Since 1922, Argiva has been enabling a switched-on waorld to flow.
We delivered the world's first TV broadcast for the BBC from the tower at London’s Alexandra Palace in 1936.

We also developed satellite TV in the 1970s, Teletext, and launched the UK's national DARB radio and digital
television networks in the 2000s.

There's no resting on our laurels though. We are currently working with our broadcast partners to develop new
ways to reach their viewers and listeners via the Cloud.

We have moved into new sectors, like Utilities. We won our first contract to deliver gas and electricity metering
in the north of England and Scotland in 2013, and followed that in 2015 with a partnership with Thames Water
to set up and run the world’s largest smart water metering network. More recently we have launched our dual
band communications device for further improved connection capabilities for gas and electricity metering and
our smart water metering network has now connected more than 2 million meters in total.

The Group’s technology and infrastructure, combined with our history and experience, enable us to work with
everycne from majer broadcasters {such as the BBC, ITV, Sky and Canal+) to independent radio groups and utility
companies (such as Thames Water and Anglian Water) to the Data Communications Company (DCC).

More recently, we launched new products such as Arqade, a cloud-based channel and live event interchange as

well as our Hybrid Connectivity service, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to support the
netwark manitering and contral needs of utility companies.
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Business model

Argiva operates through two main commercial functions, Media and Broadcast and Smart Utility Networks
supported by non-revenue generating Operations, Technology and Corporate functions.

COMMERCIAL
Media and Broadcast

This function is comprised of Terrestrial Broadcast TV and Radio, Digital Piatforms Multiplex, UK Direct-to-Home
sateilite (DTH) and Global Media segments.

The UK’'s anly supplier of national terrestrial television and radio broadcasting services and our DTT network
allows more than 24 million households a means to access TV

Our radio infrastructure supports a range of services across the UK with over 300 stations on DAB and over 460
stations across FM, AM, and MW

Media and Broadcast services remain incredibly important for viewers and listeners in the UK. Even as viewing
habits change, Ofcom reports that 79% of people continue to watch broadcast content every week. 9 out of 10
UK adults listen to over 20 hours of radio each week.

In recent years, the UK has seen the emergence of alternative viewing platforms. Hybrid platforms leverage the
reach and cost effectiveness of DTT to deliver the Free-to-Air services with interactive services typical of IP, such
as catch-up and on-demand. The increase in “pay-lite” services {e.g. Netflix, Amazon and Disney+} give
consumers further optionality to combine DTT with a cheaper Over The Top (OTT) offering. This trend also
supports the satellite and global media segment which has been providing IP streams and video-on-demand
processing services and has in recent years invested in cloud-based delivery services.

Media and Broadcast at Arqiva

From the earliest days of radio and television, through the birth of digital broadcasting to the emergence of
video over the internet, Argiva has been at the heart of the industry for nearly 100 years, trusted by broadcast
and media brands across the globe. Now, in today’s ever-evolving world, that experience combines with a
proven portfolio of broadcast infrastructure, end-to-end networks, next generation media processing and
connectivity solutions to help our customers innovate, compete and grow.

The Group benefits from a regulated position as the sole UK national provider of transmission services for digital
terrestrial television {(“DTT”) broadcasting, the most used TV platform for the consumption of linear and live
content in television homes across the UK. The Group operates all television transmission sites used for DTT
broadcasting in the UK, with over 1,450 hroadcast transmission sites of which 1,150 are television transmission
sites, covering 98.5% of the UK population. Through its Digital Platforms products, the Group is also the UK
market leader for the provision of access to the DTT platform for broadcast channels, operating the licence for
two (of six) DTT Multiplexes used for transmission of DTT services in the UK. The Group’s DTT Multiplexes have
32 streams carrying 36 channels including full-time 24/7 TV channels in addition to part-time and radio services.
We are enabling leading broadcasters such as Sky, Warner Bros, Discovery, and UKTV to deliver broadcasting
content using its channel capacity.

DTT, through the subscription-free platform, Freeview, enables the public service broadcasters (“PSBs”} to meet
the obligation under their licences to extend coverage to 98.5% of the UK population.

While consumer preference indicates rising use of “over the top” {OTT) services, popularly known as streaming
services, free-to-air (“FTA"} television retains the majority share of live video viewing in the UK as per published
TV viewing data. The near-universal coverage of DTT combined with both affordability and broadband coverage
constraints suggest that the future is likely to remain a hybrid of FTA TV, Pay-TV & OTT with a substantial share
of viewing driven by FTA TV.
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The Group also benefits from its regulated position as the only UK national provider of radio broadcast
transmission services with a 100% national market share, covering both analogue and digital services through
Digital Audio Broadcast (“DAB”). The Group has radio network infrastructure comprising approximately 1,700
analogue transmitters and 1,020 DAB transmitters over 700 radio sites providing coverage of up to 99% of the
UK population. The Group is also the operator of the two national commercial digital radio multiplexes and holds
25 of the UK’s 59 local DAB radio licences. Further, the Group is the service provider for the BBC national digital
radio Multiplex. The Group intends to support its customers and the industry by continuing to develop digital
DAB radio as an attractive medium for listeners and planning for the expected eventual phase-out of analogue
{AM closure is expected to be phased over time and completed before 2030 while there have been Gavernment
statements of support for no FM switch-off before 2030), and positioning DAB as the default replacement
network for analogue services.

The Group’s UK DTH satellite and global media business is a leading provider of satellite uplink infrastructure
and satellite distribution services in the UK in terms of the number of channels uplinked for DTH satellite
broadcast. The Group provides services to 25% of fully managed channels for UK DTH. The Group operates more
than 80 uplink dishes in five teleports {ground stations that act as a hub to connect a satellite network to a
terrestrial telecommunications network), accessing more than 25 satellites and delivering media content to five
continents. The Group also procures third-party ground-based teleport services where a line of sight to a satellite
cannot be achieved from its UK assets. This infrastructure enables the Group to provide customers with a
comprehensive range of services to deliver their data, broadcast content and media services internationally. In
addition, the Group provides encryption, multiplexing, uplinking and satellite space to channel operators
through its global media distribution offering. The Group also provides video-on-demand, streaming, metadata
management and other OTT and cloud-based services. The Group also provides network connectivity capabilities
at over 300 key media and broadcast locations delivering content in the UK through its own optical and 1P
enabled networks and to the five continents around the world through leased access to a third-party global fibre
network.

Media and Broadcast contributes significant and stable cash flows to the Group with a long-term contracted,
substantially RPI-linked order book of £2.6bn (2022: £2.8bn) which includes established, major contracts running
as far as 2035,

Smart Utilities Networks
Exclusive metering connectivity provider to electricity and gas companies in the North of England and Scotfand

Provider of metering monitaring systems to help reduce water wastage and supporting sustainability

Ambitious environmental and sustainability agendas from regulators are driving change across utility sectors,
providing huge opportunities for growth. Today less than 10% of UK premises have a smart water meter, and
less than 30% have a smart energy meter. With 20% of water lost through leaks, our water customers are focused
on reducing them and eliminating pollution caused by sewer flooding. Smart meters are providing an
opportunity to meet sustainability targets through reducing the UK's overall greenhouse gas emissions, including
up to 0.5% from smart water meters on their own.

Smart Utilities Networks at Argiva

Digital technology means that we can now get @ much better handie on how much gas, electricity and water we
all consurne. That's the first step in using less of it, something we alf have to do if we're going to live sustainably
on the planet. Argiva works across the utilities sector to make this hoppen. Through our efforts, energy and water
grids and meters are getting smarter, meaning more control, and less wastage.

For energy and mobility companies, satellite operators, military organisations and telecoms providers, secure
networks are vital. Arqiva utilises global satellite, teleport and fibre networks to support communications for
these areas. With coverage that spans the globe, we build customised end-ta-end solutions that offer reliable
data communication.
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Arqiva generates revenues with respect to the build and operation of the smart ‘machine-to-machine’ networks
and other data transmission services applications. With a continuing focus on innovation and market
opportunities, Argiva is embracing the fast-devetoping machine-to-machine sector, particularly for utilities, for
which we utilise our Flex-net network across our smart metering contracts. The Group has invested in building
machine-to-machine networks, which support major energy metering contracts spanning 15 years and covering
more than 10 million premises, of which over 2 million have been installed by Argiva through the
Communications Service Provider [North) contract with the DCC. Argiva has invested substantially in
infrastructure as a result of these contracts which now result in recurring cash flows during the long-term
operational phases of the network delivery.

The utilities business remains a key part of the Argiva business and is a key strategic priority for growth with the
potential to become the UK's leading smart utilities platform. In this area we are supporting our customers in
being able to achieve their net zero carbon sustainability agendas including in the water market. With the
adoption of Advanced Metering Infrastructure (“AMI”) by major water companies in the UK due to regulatory
and societal pressures on reducing customer-end leakage and domestic consumption, the Group has a significant
propartion of the addressable AMI market. Argiva has installed over 1,500,000 AM! meters for Thames Water,
Anglian Water and Northumbrian Water, and had commenced trials for a water company in the Midlands and
SES. The Group is the market leading provider of AMI metering networks at scale. The Group also offers satellite
data communications for electricity distribution networks.

Utilittes revenues also include site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex.

The smart utilities network products have an order book of £0.7bn {2022: £0.6bn), with contracts running as far
as 2050.

OPERATIONS

Responsible for the efficient operation and maintenance of all Argiva sites, the Operations function provides in-
life support for our media and broadcast, utilities, and internal IT systems to ensure they are delivering to our
customers’ requirements.

Our field engineering services help to deliver corrective maintenance, preventative maintenance and project
works across our broadcast and utilities transmission systems, antennas, structures and satellite/links
infrastructure. Additionally, the operations function provides management of inventory and logistics, changes,
configuration and sites and structures as well as cyber security, disaster recovery and network operations.

Also within the Operation function is the Group’s Resilience and Risk team. This incorporates Safety, Health and
Environment, Business Continuity and Sustainability specialist teams.

The Operations function is a non-revenue generating area and incurs costs in the provision of these management
and support services.

TECHNOLOGY

Our technology function operates across the business comprising engineering, product management, product
marketing, information security, data and insight and transformation.

CORPORATE

Corporate functions at Argiva comprise Finance, Procurement, Strategy & Regulatory, Legal and People and
Culture providing support services across the business. Corporate also now includes the newly established
Simplification function, responsible for the internal change and programme delivery activities following the
completion of the Group’s transformation programme, a multi-year programme to replace core IT systems, in
the year.
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Strategic Overview

Vision 2031 is our strategic focus. We have four key ambitions with strategies on how to deliver them.
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The balow prigrities set out how we plan to achieve our four key ambitions:

To be the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast

Deliver sustainable TV and Radio breadcast, protecting and focusing on
customer and operational excellence and managing capacity and margins to
maximise revenues, ensuring that the value we bring to society s understood;

- leverage our scale and the cloud, enabling industry efficiency by supporting
our customers to move to more cost-efficient and increasingly flexible models;
Expand services and drive renewals delivering greater value by selling across
our portfolio of services, and creating long-term partnerships while aiso
developing value-added services in new areas

To transition global media to cloud-based solutions
Scaling P and cloud-based services; investing in building broadcast quality
cloud processing and extending our footprint in live and events content
Becoming the go-to choice for cur partners in cloud distribution so they can
better manage their global content flows across all formats
- Growing multiplex service, using our infrastructure to provide virtual, cost-
effective, and scalable services 1o TV cable operators outside of the UK

To be the UK’s leading smart utilities platform provider

- Leading in connecting UK smart meters, maintaining market leadership, and
scaling our operations to drive and accelerate the roll-out of domestic smart
meters

- Broadening our product offering, developing new value-added data-driven
services in monitoring and control, that reduce energy use, water wastage and
pollution
Diversifying through forging partnerships and widening technology choie, to
deliver new hybrid connectivity solutions and real time network monitoting

To be anh innovator of scalable solutions for new connectivity sectors
- Working with partners, building new solutions for new and emerging sectors
that have growing and more complex connectivity needs including those that
make the most of cur infrastructure, spectrumn, and satellite expertise

Progress in 2023

Growing the business: Through the year, alongside our core product offerings
of TV and radio breadcast and Utilities networks, Media & Broadcast diversified
its services by directly tackhing the challenges faced by broadcasters, content
owners and platform operators by investing in Cloud and P technologies to
provide new services to support their global distribution strategies, reducing the
complexity and cost of managing content delivery. These services include our
new Arqgade and Argplex technologies.

Within the Smart Utilities function, a number of market opportunities have been
identified including digital transformation of the utilities sector and the
requirements to meet regulatory targets. Ta support this, new products have
been developed providing a managed sensors proposition to monitor utiities
networks inciuding sewer levels and water quality and data analytics services to
interpret the data from both meters and sensors to identify domestic leaks.

See out business updates on page 23 for further detail on our new products and
live contracts in these areas which underpin the future diversification of the
business.

Simplification: Durng 2023, we have completed our transformabon
programme and shifted fecus to how we can continue to simplify our processes
and embed continuous improvement to improve both internal ways of working
and drive custorner experience. The simplification team has therefore been
established with the aim of navigating organisation-wide programmes,
prioritisation, and resource allocation in order to streamline cur processes and
imprave our technology.

Culture: Our growth and simplification are underpinned by living our culture.
Established in the prior year, we have continued to drive our culture goals of
Accountability, One Argiva and Curiosity in order to enable high perfermance,
high engagement, innovation, agility and empower our people.



Sustainability Strategy

Argiva has 3 key sustainability goals that both support and are supported by our core business strategic
objectives, mitigating our impact on the environment, and supporting our social agenda.

Goal 1: To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero
across our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2031

Goal 2: To positively enhance the environments we operate in
Goal 3: To optimise the use of natural resources

Qur sustainability goals are individually explored in more detail in the Corporate Responsibility (Environment)
section on page 36,

Our approach to these goals is centred on several industry leadership principles;

- Establishing and maintaining all Argiva’s carbon emissions to create transparency, establishing a
dedicated Sustainability Programme with governance to coordinate delivery of our sustainability plans
across the business, identifying environmental risks and developing strategic and operational plans to
mitigate them

- Active engagement with customers to drive the carbon reduction agenda, working collaboratively with
our customers and suppliers on strategies, mitigations, and negotiating renewals with carbon
investment in mind

- Actively assessing the market and our own products for future decarbonization opportunities using new
technology and innovation

- Active engagement with regulators and government to support carbon reduction plans, priorities, and
investment

- Establish information flows and responsibilities across the organisation to ensure that sustainable
principles are embedded in all our business processes and form part of the framework used for
decision-making

Qur services are at the heart of broadcast and utilities in the UK, and our sustainability plans have the capacity
for industry-wide impacts that extend all the way into essential household services. Reducing our carbon
emissions and creating energy efficiencies under our Net zero plans therefore supports our strategic ambitions
to be the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast as well as the UK's leading smart utilities platform
provider, examples include:

- Reducing energy demand at a time of high energy prices and market volatility in high areas of
consumption for essential TV and radio platforms. Reducing consumption in the short term on AM
radio, while reshaping our FM and DAB infrastructure

- Participation in renewable purchase energy programs to lower our energy carbon emissions and
therefore those of the industries we serve.

- Championing sustainable procurement and innovation in our supply chain to make our products more
carbon-efficient and sustainable.

QOur smart utilities propositions inherently promote the responsible use of natural resources. Expanding Argiva’s
smart utility network solutions business supports ambitious environmental agendas from regulators to improve
consumption and waste management, reduction of waste, greenhouse gas emissions and UK water leakage. It
also supports our strategic ambitions to be the UK's leading smart utilities platform provider, and to optimise
the use of natural resources across the utilities sector

Our strategic ambitions to transition global media to cloud-based solutions are leading to the introduction of
next generation IP and cloud-based broadcast and transmission solutions that enable carbon reduction in our
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industry through improved scalability, enriched service aggregation, improved energy consumption, and
reductions in maintaining a traditional fixed asset base. It also future-proofs our key services and supports the
future of digital terrestrial TV and radio.

Engaging our customers and suppliers in the quest for sustainable and efficient products and designs supports
our desire to innovate in the devetopment of our products and as a potential enabler for our ambition to be an
innovator of scalable solutions for new connectivity sectors.

To achieve our sustainability targets, this year the Board approved an Environmental Sustainability Policy
(https://argiva.com/documentation}, and our sustainability charter {below). Argiva has also established a
series of possible initiatives with the potential to deliver Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions reductions over the
medium term, along with outline funding provisions.
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The Board approved the Group’s sustainability targets in December 2022 and established Argiva’s Sustainability
Programme in May 2023 with a small core team and a wider team of specialists across the group to deliver our
charter together. The programme has started to refine Argiva’s net zero plans and deliver on Argiva's
sustainability ambitions working collaboratively with our suppliers and customers to formalise our medium-term
plans and targets, to describe and track climate-related risks and opportunities, and to establish enhanced
reporting capabilities. It is working across the business to develop Arqiva’s operating model - establishing and
embedding capabilities across the Group to ensure that we can operate and grow our business sustainably. The
Programme has established and will provide updates on any climate-related risks to the Executive Committee
as required, as well as reporting on progress toward the sustainability goals overall. The Programme also
manages Arqgiva’s sustainability reporting obligations including regular key stakeholder updates.

For more information on the Programme governance see page 58, our goals and progress are described on page
36, and for details on our emissions metrics see page 72 in the Directors’ report.
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Business Update

The Group’s contracted order book value for continuing operations at 30 June 2023 was £3.3bn (2022: £3.4bn).
A significant proportion of the value of this order book relates to medium tc long-term contracts which includes
DTT and radio transmission and smart energy and water metering, as well as other infrastructure services. The
Group remains focused on growth oppartunities in targeted core infrastructure areas as well as diversification
from its new product launches.

Media and Broadcast

DTT Multiplexes

The platfarm remained fully utilised at 30 lune 2023 following the launch of That’s 60s replacing a channel which
left the UK market earlier in the year and a contract for the channel Great! Romance which replaced QVC Style,
a channel that moved multiplexes to our competitor SDN. While we continue to see high utilisation of our
multiplexes in the future, current macroeconomic factors are impacting some customers with whom we
maintain regular contact. ldeal World entered administration prior to the year end and ceased transmission, we
remain in active dialogue with the administrators and potential bidders to secure a new contract.

Radio

Both Sound Digital {(“SDL”) and Digital One {“D1") multiplexes, whilst having been fully contracted since last June
2022, now have all services launched, meaning these are fully utilised. The local radic multiplexes Argiva
operates have risen to an average 83% occupancy with significant long-term renewal activity with the B8C,
Global and Bauer ongoing. Argiva also continues to onboard new services to various multiplexes, the latest being
Amber radio. The DAB platform remains the dominant listening platform delivering 40% of all listening hours.

The industry continues to move towards AM switch-off, diverting investment to either DAB or FM as this occurs.
FM revenues hold strong with long-term contracts in place but are relatively static as all spectrum is already.
Investment in the FM platform continues with Argiva finishing some re-engineering projects for both Bauer and
Global in the year.

Direct to Home (DTH)

Earlier this year Argiva signed a multi-year deal with a UK Public Service Broadcaster {'PSB’}, representing the
first DTH deal {including satellite capacity) that has been signed with a PSB, demonstrating Arqiva’s strategy of
increasing its market share in the UK TV broadcast market. The services are scheduled to launch in 2024.

During the year, Argiva signed 2 new HD channels with DAZN which launched in April 2023. This means that
Argiva has successfully secured all 5 HD channels that have launched into the market in the last 12 months,
bringing the platform to full utilisation. Argiva also launched India Today, a new SD channel in the market. There
is also a strong pipeline of opportunities to fill up capacity when it is freed up following the multiplex upgrade
planned for 2024.

Media Management Products

Argplex, {the Group’s first customer cloud multiplexing deployment) is live, supporting 5 disaster recovery
systems for ITV. The automation and orchestration services at the heart of this solution were demonstrated at
NAB in Las Vegas with very positive feedback from international broadcasters and platform operators. A second
customer deployment with Paramount has been agreed and will be live in the next 12 months and should lead
to more systemns for the same customer.,

Argade, {Argiva’s cloud-based television content exchange product) launched in 2022. Argade enables media
companies to interchange their content with multiple platforms efficiently across the world through cloud
technology. During the year, Argade has been continuing to gain traction in the market, Notable success was
achieved with a contract with NBC Universal, delivering channels into New Zealand and Australia.
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Government (DCMS) updates

In June 2022, the ‘Broadcast 2040+’ campaign was launched by a coalition of arganisations including Argiva, with
the aim of securing a long-term commitment from the Government to the future of broadcast services. The
campaign provides a channel for supporting organisations to collaborate on policy developments and has
attracted media coverage and engagement from members of parliament. In May 2023, the Broadcast 2040+
campaign expanded to include 30 organisations including charities, membership organisations, and
broadcasters.

The Government has reiterated its view that millions of households rely on DTT and it expects this to continue
over the next decade. The Government has also stated its preference for ‘ng change’ to broadcasting’s spectrum
allocation ahead of the next World Radiocommunication Canference in November 2023, where nations come
together to agree how spectrum is allocated to different technologies and services.

The Government released a draft Media Bill in March 2023, which is undergoing pre-legislative scrutiny. The
draft Bill includes provisions intended to simplify the remit for PSBs, provide flexibility across the platforms
public service broadcasters can use to fulfil public service remit and certain content quota requirements, provide
prominence for PSBs on connected devices, introduce stricter regulatory requirements for video-on-demand
platforms, reduce regulatory burdens from commercial radio stations, and protect radio’s position on voice-
activated smart speakers. The pre-legislative scrutiny process for the draft Bill is ongoing.

Smart Utilities Networks

Regulatory Environment

The water sector regulator Ofwat has finalised its price review 2024 methodology, which sets out expectations
for water companies’ 2025-2030 business plans. Ofwat outlined that it expects companies to embrace
opportunities to improve performance through smart technology, that the regulator will support investment in
smart metering and that smart metering is likely to be a part of ‘least regret’ best value programmes to reduce
teakage. Ofwat further outlined that companies should consider smart meters that provide near real-time data
as the standard meter installation type. In June 2023, Ofwat announced its decision to allow an acceleration in
the delivery of seven smart metering schemes earmarked for 2025-2030 and equating to 462,000 smart meters,
enabling these programmes to be delivered between 2023-2025. Ofwat’s final determinations for the next
regulated price period will be delivered in December 2024,

The Government has indicated support for smart metering, outlining in its Environmental Improvement Flan
2023 that it was exploring policy options to increase smart metering through accelerated investment through to
2030. In addition, the Environment Agency asked water companies to roll out smart meters more quickly and
outlined its expectations that companies install smart meters from 2025 and replace manual read meters in its
review of draft regional and water resources management plans.

Argiva has taken an active part in consultation processes informing water companies’ final business plans for
2025-2030, highlighting the benefits of accelerated investment in smart metering. This includes contributing to
consultations on the price review 2024 methodology, Ofwat’s proposals to accelerate smart metering
programmes, and draft water resource management plans. Argiva will continue to engage with policymakers in
the lead up to Ofwat’s final determinations on water company business plans for the next regulated price period.

Anglian Water

Since the award of the Anglian Water contract in June 2020, the Group has rolled out over 630,000 meters of
the overall 789,000 targeted by 2025. The pace of network rollout continues to accelerate with a joint plan to
complete all sites before October 2024. Anglian have recently awarded two additional regions targeting an
overall deployment of 1.1 million meters by the end of 2025. Device deliveries continue at a rate of 40,000 per
month by year end.

Thames Water

Since April 2015, Argiva has delivered a smart metering network for Thames Water and as at 30 June 2023, over
889,000 meters have been installed. It is the largest smart water metering network in the UK and has high
coverage across the Thames Water London region. Argiva continues to add a number of network sites outside
London, with 2 new sites ordered for delivery this calendar year in the Thames Valiey region.
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Thames have launched a procurement exercise to satisfy the needs of their Green Economic Recovery award
and their initial AMP8 requirements. This is predicated on the use of NB-loT technology. We have proposed a
solution which leverages the existing managed service and includes Sensus based NB-loT solution and expect
the outcome in December of this calendar year.

UK Power Networks

Argiva has continued the BGAN rollout for the UK Power Networks for its network monitoring with over 1,600
units delivered by the end of June out of the total orders of 5,000 expected to be delivered in the next financial
year.

SGN Hybrid Connectivity

Following a successful bid for the Strategic Connectivity competitive procurement exercise, Arqiva has been
awarded the preferred supplier status for all three lots and will be working with SGN to conclude the contract in
October. The contract has been delayed whilst SGN confirm funding from Ofgem which is expected in the coming
months.

Other Smart Water Metering Trials

in the Midlands, Argiva has been participating in a multi-vendor, multi-technology smart water metering
evaluation trial with a major water company. The trials have proven the excellent performance of our technology
and managed service. We are extending and expanding the trial for a further 12 months and 1,900 meters,
enabling the water company to evaluate fully the benefits and establish a business case for a future full smart
metering roil-out. Orders have been received for the trial extension and meters have now been deployed. This
includes our Customer Side Leakage detection tool recently developed.

A contract was signed with SES Water to assist in evaluating the data produced by our smart metering solution
and identifying the resulting operational and financial benefits. This has now been expanded from ¢. 400 meters
to over 1,000 meters and includes both Customer Side Leakage Detection and Customer Engagement tools.

New proof of concepts (PoC}

Argiva has engaged with utility customers and industry suppliers as it seeks to expand its presence in the smart
utilities industry. Our customer side Leakage Detection PoC has been well received, we have several further
developments and customers involved as this PoC evolves. Our Sewer Level Monitoring trial has continued with
Anglian Water with 9 sites deployed and with positive initial feedback, and we are engaged in a competitive bid
process to supply ¢. 20,000 devices over the next two years. In addition, we have showcased a potential
customer engagement application to a number of water customers that has received positive feedback.

Smart energy metering rollout
The Group’s smart metering communication network in the North of England and Scotland continues to cover

99,5% of premises. There are currently over 2.6 million communications hubs operating on the network
representing circa 25% of the total UK communication hub installations. Qur Comms Hub Supply chain remains
stable and we continue to reduce the outstanding backlog of devices each month working closely with our
suppliers and the DCC in support of the programme roliout. The recent volatility in global energy markets
combined with domestic initiatives to address the increasing need for a more flexible energy system, creates
the need for considerable change and places new additional demand on our solution. We have built a strong
pipeline of change requests submitted by the DCC to meet these needs, including an expansion in capacity to
suppaort the additional traffic now forecasted to occur.
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Corporate Update

Power

For the majority of this year Argiva benefitted from stable energy pricing through hedged energy purchases
made under an energy supply contract, which expired in March. Argiva replaced its energy provider in April
because the incumbent exited the commercial & industrials market. Our new contracts now reflect the prevailing
energy market, with unit costs 230% higher than previous contracts and impacting future costs. New contracts
still provide the facility to hedge energy purchases forwards to provide cost stability and certainty of supply.

Sustainability

This year Argiva set out a Sustainability Charter, established its Scope 1 and 2 emissions and identified a series
of initiatives that could deliver absolute energy reductions working collaboratively with our suppliers and
customers. As part of our commitment made to Science Based Targets (SBTi) this year, we also assessed our
Scope 3 emissions using financial year 2022 as a proposed baseline year.

The Board approved the establishment of a Sustainability Programme, to formalise and coordinate delivery of
Argiva’s plans, working collaboratively with our suppliers and customers, and to establish information flows and
responsibilities across the organisation to embed the core principles across the business. In this report Argiva
also provides its inaugural Non-Financial Sustainability Information Statement as required by UK BEIS, setting
out key climate-related risks and opportunities.

Bilsdale Mast Fire

The new 300m+ mast at Bilsdale, which replaced the mast irreparably damaged by a fire in August 2021, began
transmitting standard definition television services on 22 May 2023. Following this date, high-definition services
went live from the mast on 4 June 2023. The new mast at Bilsdale has now restored the core Freeview channels
to the region, on the same frequencies and to the same signal area as the old mast. Argiva maintained its Project
Restore Help Scheme for a period from the launch of the new mast to support viewers who might need help in
restoring services. Since October 2021 the scheme received over 26,000 phone calls, arranged more than 8,000
engineer visits and supported nearly 300,000 visits to a dedicated website, Bilsdalemast.co.uk. The Project
Restore Help Scheme closed in July 2023 as any new issues experienced are very unlikely to be related to the
fire. Work continues to install additional antenna equipment to restore radio services provided by the Bilsdale
mast.

The Group has submitted a claim to its insurance provider in respect of such costs and expects that the insurance
proceeds will be sufficient 1o cover some but not all of the costs. £25m was received in interim payments for
this claim by 30 june 2023. A final total settlement of £41m was agreed and received post year end in August.
To date, the Group has incurred £31.2m in capital expenditure for the rebuild of the mast and incurred a further
£14.3m of exceptional operating expenses in respect of community support activities and restoration costs.

In May 2023, the BBC issued proceedings against Argiva claiming service and other credits alleged to be due to
the BBC under its contracts with Argiva, owing to the loss of service caused by the fire at the Bilsdale mast in

August 2021. These proceedings are ongoing and the Group has taken legai advice and is defending the claim.

See page 29 for further information on the financial impacts of the fire,
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Financial review

Financial Performance

For the year ended 30 June 2023, revenue for the Group was £651.7m, an increase of 4.4% from £624.1m in the
prior year on a total.

Media and Broadcast

Total Media and Broadcast revenue has decreased by 0.8% year on year to £462.4m from £466.3m. Our core
broadcast TV and radio distribution products have remained strong and stable during the year with inflationary
increases due to RPl indexation on these long-term contracts.

These increases have been partially offset by pricing pressures on multiplex products. Following new channel
launches in the year, utilisation has remained strong on the Group’s main {DVB-T) multiplexes and was 100% at
30 June 2023. Across the UK DTH and managed media services, revenue has remained flat however we expect
there to be impacts in 2024 due to customer terminations at the end of the year and loss of customers that have
entered administratian.

Anincrease in customer service credits (2023: £15.3m; 2022; £7.6m) arising from the fire on the Bilsdale site has
further negatively impacted revenue in the year. See note 7 of the financial statements for further information.

Smart Utilities Networks

Revenue from Smart Utilities Networks has increased from £157.8m to £189.3m, a 20.0% increase year on year,
This increase is due to the continued ramp-up of revenues from water metering contracts as well as device sales
across all water and energy metering as supply chain issues have eased.

Smart revenue also includes site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex. Revenue in this area has increased following one-off revenue received in the year in relation to a
further Cellnex transaction.

Gross profit has remained relatively flat year on year from £421.3m to £420.9m primarily driven by the increases
in revenue and related costs also increasing in the year reflecting the lower margin nature of the increases in
revenue.

Other operating expenses from the total Group were £96.8m, up 8.0% from £89.6m in the prior year. Despite
cost savings attributable to one-off costs incurred in the prior year on project consultancy and IT licences and
maintenance established from the Group's digital transformation not repeated, operating expenditure has
increased year on year, This is partly driven by the nature of projects worked on resulting in lower capitalised
overheads as the Group pursues its simplification journey and focuses on diversifying its product portfolio with
new product launches during the year. Further cost increases are as a result of insurance costs and non-cash
gains from lease modifications in the prior year not repeated.
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EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation” and
includes add-backs for certain items charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying
performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 29.

2.7%

73.9 67.2 10.0%
426.2 410.3 3.9%
(23.4) {25.3) 7.5%
{(32.4) {28.5) (13.7)%
(30.3) {15.1) (100.7)%
340.1 341.4 (0.4)%

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Simplification function has been established to oversee internal change
and programme delivery activities following the completion of the transformation programme. The costs for this
area are recognised within the Corporate function. With staff moving across to this function from other areas of
the business much of these costs were previously recognised elsewhere in the business, predominantly the
Commercial and Technology and Transformation segments.

Total EBITDA was £340.1m, a 0.4% decrease from the prior year of £341.4m. Despite the increase in revenue,
EBITDA has been impacted by increasing power costs and staff costs due to the nature of programmes being
worked on.

Within the Media and Broadcast business, EBITDA has increased by 2.7%, from £343.1m to £352.3m. This
increase is primarily driven by the increases in revenue from core TV and radio products and decreased staff
costs due to the nature of products worked on in the year. This is partially offset by increases in energy costs.

EBITDA for the Group’s Smart Utilities Networks business has increased from £67.2m to £73.9m, an increase ot
10.0% driven by the increases in revenue. This includes the one-off revenue received in respect of former
telecommunications sites for the Cellnex transaction as well as increases in device sales on both energy and
water metering contracts following improvements in previous supply chain delays. The margin for Smart Utilities
is however slightly impacted due to the increase in revenues from device sales as a relatively lower margin
product.

The Operations functional segment is a non-revenue generating segment responsible for the efficient operations
and maintenance of all Argiva services including field engineers, disaster recovery and network operations.
EBITDA for the Operations segment has increased 7.5% due to a decrease in costs from £25.3m to £23.4m, The
decrease is predominantly due to staff costs and recoveries due to changes in the nature of projects being
worked on by the team as well as a decrease in insurance costs that were included within this function in the
prior year but are included within the corporate function in the current year.

EBITDA for the non-revenue generating Technology function for the year was a loss of £32.4m, an increase in
cost of 13.7% from a loss of £28.5m in the prior year. The increase in cost is mainly due to the nature of projects
being worked on resulting in lower capitalisation of overheads in the year. This has been partially offset by a
reduction in one-off costs incurred in the prior year not repeated in relation to the Group’s digital enterprise
platforms as a result of the transformation programme and consultancy project costs.

Corporate EBITDA represents costs for the support functions such as finance, strategy & regulatory, legal and
HR services as well as the new simplification team. EBITDA for this function has increased cost by 100.7% from
a loss of £15.1m to £30.3m year an year. This increase in cost has been partly driven by the new simplification
team now included within the function predominantly due to staff costs in this area as well as an increase due
to insurance costs which were included within operations in the comparative year. Further reduction is due to a
lower gain recognised year on year on modification of lease contracts under IFRS 16 accounting.
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In the year, depreciation has decreased by £66.7m (2023: £91.7m; 2022: £158.4m) and amortisation has
decreased by £0.3m (2023: £12.9m; 2022: £13.2m). The collective decrease of depreciation and amortisation is
driven by a reduction in accelerated depreciation and amortisation from the prior year not repeated. This is
particularly in connection with assets replaced under the 700MHz clearance programme and software assets
decommissicned in the prior year under the Group’s transformation programme which have both now
completed. Further decreases are due to the reassessment of the calculation of depreciation in relation to
certain capital programmes,

Exceptional operating expenses charged to operating profit were £11.2m, decreasing from £19.6m in 2022.
Exceptional costs in the current year predominantly relate to restoration costs arising from the Bilsdale fire,
restructuring and severance costs as the Group completed its transformation programme and embedded
organisational design changes and one-off shareholder projects. Exceptional operating expenses are excluded
from EBITDA. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented below.

The restoration costs of £4.3m incurred within exceptional operating expenses (2022: £10.0m) were associated
with the Bilsdale transmitter following a fire which broke out on 10 August 2021 including support costs
following the completion of the new permanent mast. Costs recognised are those which have been incurred to
date and can be reliably measured. See note 7 to the financial statements for further disclosure on the full
financial impacts incurred,

The Group has continued to engage with insurers regarding the fire. Whilst the insurers have concluded their
investigations, the precise findings have not been publicly shared. Further interim stage payments of £20.0m
have been received from the insurers in the year {2022: £5.0m} which has been recognised as exceptional other
income in the income statement. A final settlement of £16m has been received post year end in August 2023.

Operating profit has increased 64.9% (2023: £236.1m; 2022: £143.2) across the Group. This increase is driven by
the improved trading performance of the group as well as the reductions in depreciation as capital programmes
progress, reduced costs and higher insurance proceeds received associated with the Bilsdale fire.

A reconciliation between operating profit and EBITDA is presented below:

Operating profit 143.2
Exceptional items charged to operating profit 19.6
Exceptional service credits 7.6
Depreciation 158.4
Amortisation 13.2
impairment - 0.5
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets - 9.5
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 0.7 2.1
Other Income {7.8) {7.7)
Exceptional Other Income (20.0) {5.0)
Total EBITDA 340.1 3414

Finance costs {net of finance income) were £815.6m, an increase of 11.9% from £728.8m in 2022. This increase
is driven primarily by the compounding effect of interest of the outstanding shareholder loan note principal and
accrued interest. There has also been a further increase in bank and other loan interest, Despite an overall
decrease in principal debt, interest costs have increased due to inflation indexation in relation to our index-
linked swap derivatives as well as higher overall interest costs on the Junior level debt, refinanced at the
beginning of the year.

Other gains and losses for the year included £27.3m of losses (2022: £76.1m loss). This loss is as a result of fair
value movements of interest rate and index-linked swaps, principaily attributable to changes in forward market
rates and credit spreads.
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Lass before tax for the Group was £606.82m decreasing from £662.0m in the prior year.

The loss before tax is reported after non-cash charges of £851.6m (2022: £898.6m} as shown below:

Loss before tax (606.8) {662.0)
Depreciation 91.7 158.4
Amortisation 12.9 13.2
Impairment - a5
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets - 9.5
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 07 2.1
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 685.5 602.7
Other non-cash financing costs? 33.5 36.1
Fair value movements on derivative financial instruments 27.3 76.1
Total non-cash charges 851.6 898.6
Adjusted profit before tax and non-cash charges 244.8 236.6
Cash Flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £276.6m, a 16.5% decrease from £331.3m in 2022. Despite
operating profit increasing year on year, the cash flow decrease is driven by the movement in working capital.
Working capital inflows have decreased due to one-off working capital inflows in the prior year not repeated
relating to the refinancing of network set-up charges for smart energy metering as well as the utilisation and
unwind of deferred income {decreasing contract liabilities) and timing of payments.

There has been a decrease in capital expenditure on the purchase of tangible and intangible assets year on year.
This is driven by a reduction in expenditure on significant capital projects as these programmes have now
completed including the Group’s transformation programme as well as expenditure on an IT refresh for the
Smart energy metering programme in the prior year not repeated. This reduction has partially been offset by
increases in capital expenditure incurred in relation to works on the Bilsdale transmitter site following the fire,
including the completion of the new permanent mast as well as increases related to our new products. Further
decreases to net capital expenditure are due to the insurance payments received in respect of the Bilsdale claim.

2 Includes amortisation of debt issues costs, unwinding of discount on provisions, imputed interest and interest on lease
liabilities
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Net cash inflow from operating activities 276.6 331.3
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets {64.7) (88.7)
Sale of tangible and intangible assets 0.8 -
Receipt of insurance stage payment 20.0 5.0
Net capital expenditure and financial investment (43.9) (83.7)
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities 232.7 247.6

Cash Conversion as a % of EBITDA?
QOperating cash flow after capital and financial investment 68.4% 72.5%

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net
cash flows from operating activities less cash flows from investing activities per the cash flow statement
excluding interest received. See the above table for a reconciliation to cash inflow from operating activities.

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities was £232.7m, a decrease of 6.0% from
£247.6m in the prior year. This decrease has been principaily driven by the decrease in working capital
movements reducing net operating cash flows partially offset by the reduction in net capital expenditure due to
programme progression and the interim stage payments received in respect of the Bilsdale site fire. Cash
conversion levels for the Group remain strong although decreased due to movements in working capital.

Financing cash flows have increased year on year (2023: £442.4m outflow; 2022: £240.7m outflow) owing to the
repayment of borrowings predominantly arising from the refinancing of the Group’s Junior debt, with £450.0m
proceeds utilised along with existing cash balances to redeem the previous £625.0m of lunior bands. An
additional outflow in the year is due to the increase in accretion payments made on our inflation-linked swaps
as a result of the high inflation levels. In June 2023, the Group completed an accretion cap and collar execution
timiting future exposure to inflation on its derivatives to a range of between 2% and 6%. This is partially offset
by a further £95.1m of debt proceeds received in June 2023 following the issue of new US private placement
notes.

The total cash flow for the year was a £207.7m outflow (2022: £7.7m inflow}. This decrease is principally owing
to the repayment of borrowings and accretion impacts partially offset by the decrease in capital investment cash
flows explained above.

Financial Position

Net liabilities were £4,825.0m, representing an increase of 14.2% from £4,224.5m in the prior year. The net
liability position is primarily driven by the capital structure reflecting the shareholder loan notes, borrowings,
lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments held. The increase in liabilities for the year is driven by the
financing costs for the Group. Post year end the Group has completed a further senior debt refinancing. See
page 32 for further information. Qur assessment of going concern is set out on page 33.

Financing

The Group established our Whole Business Securitisation (“WBS'} structure in February 2013, and since then we
have continued to refinance elements of our debt structure further extending our maturity profile.

Standard and Poor’s and Fitch reconfirmed their rating of Argiva senior debt at BBB+ and BBB respectively,

* Cash conversion as a % of EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure referring to the calculation of operating cash flow after capital
and financial investment activities as a percentage of EBITDA.
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At 30 June 2023 the Group's debt finance® comprised:

< 1 year 1-2years 2-5 years »>5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Facilities drawn 15.0 - 19.7 - 34.7
Finance lease obligations 18.3 13.4 18.6 18.7 69.0
Senior term debt 262.0 - - - 262.0
Senior bonds and notes 453 48.1 2343 4229 750.6
Junior bonds - - 450.0 - 450.0
Shareholder loan notes - - - 2,148.1 2,148.1
Total 340.6 61.5 722.6 2,589.7 3,714.4

Included within the above is £2,728.1m of fixed rate debt and £986.3m of floating rate debt. £93.5m of Senior
bonds and notes represents US dollar-denominated private placements. All other debt held at 30 June 2023 is
sterling denominated. The Group holds interest rate swaps (including inflation-linked interest rate swaps) and
cross-currency swaps to hedge our interest rate exposures. This hedging strategy is employed to ensure the
certainty of future interest cash flows. The Group does not apply hedge accounting to these swap arrangements.

Post year end in July 2023, the Group has completed its senior debt refinancing, with a £250m public bond issue.
These facilities are fixed rate in nature with a coupon of 7.21% and a final maturity in 2028, £262.0m of the
proceeds from the public bond issue and the US private placement issue completed in tune 2023 have been
utilised to prepay the outstanding senior term debt that was due to mature within the next 12 months.

The Group continues to comply with all financial covenant requirements including the following historic
covenant ratio requirements at the senior financing level:

Tl Py

4 Excluding unamortised debt issue costs and accrued interest
* ‘Cash flow’ as defined under the Group’s financing common terms agreement, i.e. this is not a GAAP
measure.
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Liguidity

To ensure we have sufficient available funds for working capital reguirements and planned growth the Group
maintains cash reserves and access to undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast requirements. At 30 June
2023, the Group had a cash balance of £43.5m {2022: £251.2m). The Group carefully manages the credit risk on
liquid funds and derivative financial instruments with balances currently spread across a range of major financial
institutions, which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The levels of
credit risk are monitored through the Group’s on-going risk management processes, which include a regular

review of counterparty credit ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a maximum level and term for
deposits with any single counterparty.

Going Concern

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
generated cash flows, will continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations,
including our contractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes, financing and
contractual deferral of sharehalder loan note interest as they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt
facilities established post year end, see note 30 for further information. For this reason, the Directors are
confident that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses a combination of financial and non-financial key performance indicators {*KPIs’) to measure
against our strategic ambitions.

See page 19 for further information on our strategic ambitions:

Financial KPls

Revenue

fm

Definition — Revenue is presented as per the financial statements, and
in occardance with IFRS 15

Revenue has increased 4.4% from the prior year (2023: £651.7m;
2022: £624.1m). Revenues on TV and radio distribution have
remained strong due to RPl-indexation on the contracts as well as
increases across our utilities contracts due to strong device sales.
There is also a one-off increase due to revenue received in respect of
former Telecoms towers from the Cellnex transaction. These
increases have however been partially offset by the run rate of lower
fee renewals across our DTT platform and customer terminations
managed media services, A further decrease is due to service credits
to certain customers following the Bilsdale fire (2023: £15.3m; 2022:
£7.6m).

EBITDA

£m

30

|V
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Definition — EBITDA is g non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘eornings
before interest, tax, depreciotion and amortisation” and includes add-
backs for certain items charged to operating profit that do not reflect
the underlying business performarnce. See page 29 for its
reconciliation to operating profit.

Total EBITDA has decreased 0.4% (2023: £340.1m; 2022: £341.4m).
Despite the increase in revenue, this is driven by lower margin
products such as devices on utility products. Margins are also
impacted by increased power costs due to higher market prices and
are expected te remain higher in the coming years. Further cost
increases are due to lower capitalised overheads increasing staff costs
due to the nature of projects and programmes being worked on
during the year.

Operating cash flow after capital and

financial investment

RO

150

Definition — Operating cash flow after capital investment activities
represents the cash generated after spending required to maintain or
expand its asset base. This is calculated as the net cash flow from
operations minus the net cash flow from capital expenditure and
financial investment, See page 31 for its reconciliotion to net cash
flow from aperations.

Cash generated has decreased by 6.0% from £247.6m to £232.7m.
This has predominantly been driven by one-off working capital
inflows in the prior year not repeated in relation to refinancing of
network setup charges on smart energy metering contracts. Working
capital outflows are due to the normal unwind of contract Nability
balances. Capitat expenditure has decreased year on year due to the
reductions in major capital programmes such as the Group’s
transformation programme as these programmes completed and
smart energy metering due to an iT refresh in the prior year. This is
partially offset by an increase in costs incurred on the capital
restoration on the Bilsdale transmitter site with the build of the
permanent mast and capital expenditure incurred for new product
growth.
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Non-financial KPis

Broadcast - Network availability Definition — Argiva strives to provide consistently high service levels and
look to manage and monitor the total annual level of network availability
across both TV and radio infrastructure as o percentage across alf
multiplexes

Result — Through careful management, Argiva has consistently been able
to achieve high levels of network availability. Availability is under the
target of 99.995% availability due to an extended outage with one
customer.

Strategic ambition targeted - to be the undisputed leader in UK TV and
radio broadceast distribution

Utilities

The Smart metering M2M contract has continued to achieve 99.5% network coverage in the North of England and
Scotland.

Rollout of water metering on contracts won with Anglian Water and Thames Water. Other smart water metering trials
are in progress

Strategic ambition targeted— To be the UK’s leading smart utilities platform provider

New sector product diversification

Media Management Products
B Argplex, the Group's first customer cloud multiplexing deployment product, is in build and has 2 customer
deployments supporting ITV and Paramount.
- Argade, a cloud-based channel and live event content exchange has launched demonstrating the value of
integration with traditional broadcast infrastructure. Service deliveries contracted with NBC Universal.

Utility Products
- Hybrid Connectivity services, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to suppert the network
monitering and control needs of utility companies with contracts awarded with SGN
- Leakage Detection and Sewage Level monitar proof of concept trials are continuing with positive feedback

Strotegic ambition — Innovator of scalable solutions for high-connectivity sectors

Customers Premium customers temperature check for the sentiment of our
Premium customer temperature check top 26 Premium Customers in June has 18 of our customers in a
good position at Green.

We have six customers ¢lassified as Amber, Key issues in June relate
to service reliability and outages and initial issues in new product
implementation.

Two customers were classified as red due to an extended outage
with one customer and the other terminating their contract to
move te another supplier.

T No customers are in Hypercare — an improvement from one in the
prior year due to progress made on open issues.

People
Qur engagement score has increased to 71 in May 2023 (+5 from 66

in May 2022 assessed fram our Employee Engagement survey.

Argiva is now only two points off the Glint UK benchmark
engagement score of 73.

Response rate in March 2023 was 79% {-4% from September 2022).
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Corporate Responsibility

Doing business the right way and sustainably is vital to Argiva. It's as important as what we achieve.

Argiva endeavours to conduct its business in a way that benefits all our stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees, shareholders and communities in which we operate as well as creating a sustainable
future for the business

Our ethics, values and behaviours are woven through every aspect of what we do.

Qur culture is critical to the success of our strategy with our 3 culture goals driving how we serve our customers
and creating a great place to work. These goals include:

1. Accountability — being accountable for the promises we make

2. One Argiva — working together as one team

3, Curiosity — striving to look at things differently to discover a better way

Sustainability

Qur sustainahility principles and goals continue to be formally embedded into our business processes, ensuring
that we can operate and grow our business sustainably. This year, the Board approved the establishment of a
Sustainability Programme to guide and direct Argiva’s sustainahility plans, establish the information flows and
responsibitities across the organisation, and to describe and track climate-related risks and opportunities. For
more details on climate-related governance and risk management see page 58.

Environment

Goal 1: To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero across our
Scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2031,

Argiva is a large owner and operator of infrastructure with several customers who outsource energy intensive
services to us. Our energy strategy is a key area of interest, economically and environmentally to both Argiva
and its customers, it reflects our collective net-zero ambitions by

- Reducing energy consumption in partnership with our customers

- Investing in energy efficient technologies

- Working with our key suppliers to reduce carbon in our supply chain; and

- Monitoring and managing carbon emissions

Over the course of this financial year, we established several key milestones in our journey to net zero by 2031
on Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions and targeting net zero across Scope 3 by 2040. Aragiva established its Scope
1 and 2 emissions and identified a series of possible initiatives that could deliver absolute reductions by working
collaboratively with our suppliers and customers. As part of our commitment made to SBTi {Science Based
Targets) this year, we also assessed our Scope 3 emissions using financial year 21/22 spend as a proposed
baseline year.

We continue to investigate how re-engineering or replacement of technical equipment, emerging technologies
and ingenious ways of working can help us and our customers realise sustainable ambitions and decarbonise
operations. While there are associated investment imptications for Argiva and its Customers, most of the
equipment targeted has been in service for some time, as a result, no material asset impairments are
anticipated.

Responsible management of energy is also being embedded in Argiva. Examples include the electrification of
our fleet vehicles, logistics optimisation, transition to low carbon fuel for generators, optimising building
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management systems, replacing gas and oil central heating and targeting gas leakage from air conditioning
systermns.

We have committed to purchasing 100% renewable electricity from March 2024, We are also identifying
innovative sustainable power solutions that can be deployed at scale alongside certified renewable energy
purchases as part of our renewable energy supply strategy, which will feature prominently where absolute
reductions can’t be made.

For more information on our net zero plans, progress and emissions see page 72 in the Directors’ report.
Goal 2: To positively enhance the environments we operate in

Many of our sites are in rural locations around the country with protected hahitats and wildlife. To positively
enhance these environments we seek to protect, work around, or strive to have the least impact possible on
natural habitats, rare flowers, and wild animals and te improve the habitats for flora and fauna to thrive in,
supporting and enhancing biodiversity. We will develop further opportunities for our sites to support and
enhance biodiversity through enhanced maintenance regimes, developing relationships with key suppliers and
wildlife conservation groups, as well as supporting our staff to get more involved with related projects and
initiatives.

We already work closely with planning authorities and local communities to find the best acceptable solution
for locations of masts and infrastructure essential to keeping both rural and urban communities connected.
Argiva maintains an environmental management system {accredited to ISO 14001} providing governance and
training for employees to protect and enhance environmentally sensitive areas and the wildlife they attract.
This year Argiva’s employees planted 70 native trees in tribute to the 70-year reign of HRH Queen Elizabeth -
praviding a new habitat for wildlife to thrive,

Argiva values accountability and transparency in our supply chain. We operate a supplier code of conduct
{available on https://argiva.com/decumentation) to encourage and support our suppliers to act responsibly,
working in socially and environmentally sustainable ways to minimise any potential impact on the environment
as a result of supplying goods and services to us. As part of our application to 5BTi in 2023, we built on this by
assessing our Scope 3 emissions and identifying key suppliers to develop wider supply chain strategies to reduce
our Scope 3 carbon emissions and drive efficiencies through deeper supply chain insights, accountability, and
re-engineering.

We provide services to customers utilising complex and often shared infrastructure so we are also working to
provide a higher degree of transparency on the carbon emissions associated with our products and services for
individual customers {over and above - for example - share of revenue) so that we can work collabaratively with
them to identify ways to reduce demand for electricity and carbon emissions through re-engineering or
replacement of technologies.

As noted in our Charter, more detailed plans and metrics are to be established for this goal in the course of the
2024 financial year.

Goal 3: To optimise the use of natural resources

This goal is focused on the reduction of waste generated as a consequence of our operations, and incorparating
the principles of a “circular econamy” that consider waste through the supply chain including end-of-life
management and maintenance of assets, including reclamation and re-use of usable components and
equipment to support extending the useful life of our wider asset base, potentially avoiding increased carbon
emissions otherwise associated with wholesale asset replacement. It also seeks to improve our understanding
and management of our direct and indirect consumption of finite resources such as water and energy. This
ambition also extends into the markets we serve, offering customers solutions to mitigate their own
environmental impacts.

We are developing our policies and enhancing processes to facilitate and report on these ambitions with
measures expected to include the level of assets recovered, recycled, or reused in Argiva in its supply chains,
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and the levels of support we have been able to offer our customers. As noted in our Charter, more detailed
plans and metrics are to be established for this goal in the course of the 2024 financial year.

Ambitious environmental agendas from regulators are driving change across utility sectors, providing
opportunities for growth. Our smart energy and water utilities propositions inherently support a more
responsible use of natural resources, assisting our utilities customers with their sustainability agendas,
improving consumption and waste management, and reducing waste, reducing greenhouse gas emissions and
UK water leakage.

Argiva are also developing next generation cloud-based, IP enabled services to aggregate media content from
different sources for distribution to different platforms using content delivery networks that can work alongside
traditional broadcast platforms, enabling customer carbon reduction through improved scalability, enriched
service aggregation, improved energy consurnption, and reductions in maintaining a traditional fixed asset base.

In its own operations, Arqiva’s sustainability strategy seeks to consider the environmental risk of every
investment made and reduce our dependency on natural resources by adopting sustainable ‘circular economy’
practices. Argiva continues to develop sustainable routes for items no longer required by the business,
repurposing displaced technology elsewhere in our estate, and recycling viable technologies and materials
ranging from repurpasing of laptops to recycling of reclaimable materials from infrastructure replacement. This
year we have recycled 126 tonnes and repurposed over 0.25 tonnes of equipment.

We recently introduced transparent consumable purchasing options allowing employees to opt for “climate
pledge friendly” products from suppliers with more carbon efficient and aggregated logistics, reducing multiple
handling.

Under our Sustainability Programme, we alfso launched initiatives to find efficiencies in our asset maintenance
schedules, e.g. logistics optimisation, remote monitoring/resets, bundling and reducing consumable holdings
including refurbishment and recycling.

Social

Supporting Charities

We support our colleagues’ fundraising for local and other national causes close to their hearts. To help, Argiva
provides matched funding enabling colleagues to fundraise for their chosen charities, from Diabetes UK and the
NSPCC to local community projects, children’s clubs and sports teams.

Argiva also supports the ‘Give as You Earn’ scheme in partnership with the Charities Aid Foundation {CAF)
allowing colleagues to get tax relief on their donations. In 2023, we retained our Bronze CAF award. The amount
provided to charities through this scheme has reached over £100,000 over the past three years.

Following the fire at our Bilsdale site in 2022, Argiva donated £50,000 each to three local charitable organisations
to support communities affected by the fire and to help identify those in greatest need,

We also support our colleagues to volunteer their time and talents to causes they care about. During 2023 Argiva
has partnered with Matchable, an online portal to match colleagues with volunteering projects. To further
support this, we offer our colleagues one day paid volunteering leave every year,

Supporting Our People

We aim to create a workplace where people feel engaged, energised and respected, where they can do their
best, and look after their personal wellbeing, both in and out of work.

Wellbeing
The Group has an ongoing commitment to the health and emational wellbeing of our pecple. Argiva runs an
annual event focusing on both organisational and personal resilience, which includes wellbeing sessions and
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training courses. We also have a network of Wellbeing ambassadors and mental health first-aiders, who are
equipped to listen without judgement, reassure and respond to colleagues, even in a crisis.

As well as these activities, cur colleagues have access to a wealth of support through our Employee Assistance
Programme.

Health and Safety

Health and safety is vital, whether in the office or repairing an antenna on a 300 metre mast. We have been a
driving farce in developing the Mast and Tower Safety Group, we run our own accredited 10SH Working Safely
training scheme for our engineers, and we collaborate with the union BECTU on an annual employee safety
conference.

We are committed to complying with applicable health and safety legislation and to continual improvement in
achieving a high standard of health, safety, and welfare in our operations and for all those in the organisation
and others who may be affected by our activities. The Group operates a robust integrated management system
that is certified to 15014001, 15045001, 1SO90001 and 150270001 as well as offering training programmes
covering specific skills and general awareness.

Supporting Diversity and Inclusion

Our diversity and inclusion programme ensures that we are continually focused on what's needed for everyone
to feel included and be able to perform. We are committed to making our workplace as diverse and inclusive as
possible because the complex engineering and commercial challenges we need to solve can only be done by
people with a diverse range of skills, backgrounds and life experiences. We have moved beyond building
awareness around unconscious bias and are now supporting colleagues to understand the difference hetween
intent and impact.

Our Diversity Ambassadors have been instrumental in encouraging and engaging other workplace communities
by running an active programme of events. We now have an active Women at Argiva network, a Working
Families group, a Neurodiversity network, and activities to support Pride month so we can listen, support and
take opportunities to make lasting, tangible changes so our working practices are even more inclusive. We have
become a corporate member of the industry leading Inclusive Employers to ensure we benefit from their
campaigns and subject matter expertise as well as being a member of Tommy’s ‘Pregnancy and Parenting at
Work’ scheme to support pregnant colieagues and secondary caregivers through that journey.

At a Board level, the Governance and Remuneration Committee are responsible for reviewing the Group’s
diversity and inclusion policies.

Emplaoyees

The average number of persans employed by the Group during the year was 1,284 (2022: 1,287). Argiva
recognises the significant contribution of our employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and
engaging work environment.

Our policy is to provide equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, religion or political beliefs, disability or age. Like many engineering-based businesses,
we recognise that Argiva has a higher propertion of men than women and we are working to address this with
the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion through our diversity and inclusion programme.

The table helow provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees as at 30 June:

Board of Directors 1/10% 9/ 90% 2/20% 8/ 80%
Executive Committee 3/33% 6/66% 2/25% 6/75%
Group Employees 295 / 23% 089 /77% | 296 / 23% 991 / 77%
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The Group continues to address training and development requirements for employees at all levels within the
organisation in order to foster a culture of learning and to embrace the curiosity mindset. The Board also reviews
future management requirements and succession plans on an on-going basis.

The Group is a corporate partner of the Institute of Engineering and Technology (IET) supporting engineering
roles to achieve IET Professional status. We are also a member of the AWS Partner Network enabling technical
and non-technical development and certification, provides sponsorship for professional qualifications and
subscriptions and offers all employees access for self-paced learning provision such as A Cloud Guru, AWS Skills
Builder, LinkedIn Learning and Oracle Learning Cloud.

To support emerging talent, Argiva offers 2-year graduate programmes with an annual intake every September
to progress into permanent roles as well as apprenticeship schemes, via the apprenticeship levy. Other initiatives
include a “Lead the Way” programme to support the development of the leadership team, “Change Ready”
programmes for managers and is also running Level 3 and Level 5 qualifications with the Chartered Management
Institute in a Leadership and Management Development Programme.

The Argiva Employee Board ("AEB’) has continued throughout the year. The AEB is a democratically elected
Board that acts as a voice for employees across Argiva and provides a clear and direct link between the Group’s
employees and the Executive Committee. The AEB continues to meet on a monthly basis to discuss key matters
such as performance management, or efficiencies and processes to develop responsive action plans.
Furthermore, the AEB {as well as the Executive Committee) interacts with representatives of BECTU (the
Broadcasting, Entertainment, Cinematograph and Theatre Union) regarding employee matters.

The Group’s employee forums provide an effective channel for communication and collective consultation
across the Group. They play an important role in enabling employees to help the Group manage change
effectively. The goals of each forum are to act as the formal consultative body for its part of the business within
Arqgiva, provide a voice to management on employee issues, initiate and support social activities, and promote
consultation and sharing information.

Significant emphasis is placed on employee communication. The Group intranet, ‘The Hub’, makes information
available tu employees on all marters including performance, growth, and issues aftecting the industry. The
Group also runs “Connect Days” across various sites to bring employees together and provide opportunity for
updates and discussion across the business.

Our “Work. Life. Smarter.” initiative also recognises the benefit of hybrid working to our employees. This
commitment to our people endeavours for our people to feel supported and empowered to work in a way that
enables them to thrive in their role, give their best every day and a work experience that provides a choice about
how, when and where we work.

Argiva wants all our employees to benefit from cur success and growth as a business. The annual bonus scheme
recognises the importance of high performance and is designed to reward employees for achieving targets and
continuous improvement in overall performance, in line with our values and strategy. The scheme takes into
account the targets that have been set by the Group. The Group must achieve a minimum operating cash
performance before a banus becomes payable which is then caleulated based on these financial KPls. Argiva has
also introduced a Share the Success Policy for employees who do not qualify for the annual bonus scheme. This
scheme is also based on achieving a minimum operating cash target with performance shared with quatifying
colleagues on a profit share arrangement. These bonus payments for the 2023 financial year are expected to be
made in October 2023. In addition, certain members of our senior management participate in a long-term
incentive plan which is typically 3 years in duration and is designed to recognise the value of strategic initiatives
being undertaken by the Group during the longer-term. As with the annual bonus scheme, the Group must
achieve a minimum threshold of financial performance before a bonus becomes payable under the long-term
incentive plan which is then calculated based upon the 3-year Group financial KPls of EBITDA and operating cash
performance. All such arrangements are cash-based incentive schemes which operate against documented
performance targets and are reviewed at least annually by the Governance and Remuneration Committee
(which comprises members of the Board of Directors).
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Gender Pay Gap

The full annual gender pay gap report is available on the company website at www.argiva.com. The latest report
shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with improvements in both the mean and
median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details on why we have a pay gap, the reasans
for the increase in the year and the actions we are taking to address the issue.

Modern Slavery Act

Argiva is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part of our business. The supplier Code of Conduct reflects the commitment to acting ethically and with
integrity in all business relationships and to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure
slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere in our supply chains. The full statement is included
on page 44 and is also available on the company website at www.argiva.com.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

In conjunction with the UK Bribery Act 2010, the Group has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees which
incorporates all its anti-corruption policies and procedures. The policies apply to all Argiva employees employed
oh both a permanent and temporary basis. The Code of Conduct also sets out the policies and procedures on
the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitality.

Information Security

Due to the critical importance of our sites and systems to the Group, our customers and, in some cases, as Critical
National Infrastructure, we take information security very seriously, focusing on protecting and managing access
to information throughout its entire lifecycle.

We hold certification to ISO/IEC 27001:2013. 1SO27001 is an internationally recognised specification for an
information security management system {ISMS), a framework of policies and procedures that includes all legal,
physical and technical controls involved in an organisation’s information risk management processes. This allows
us to compete for new business which requires us to demonstrate the robustness of our security controls.
Through independent review and accreditation, supported by internal monthly audits, we continue to
confidently demonstrate our commitment to security and secure working practices. We have held this
certification since 2013 and recertify every three years with recertification tast given in May 2022.

We also hold Cyber Essentials certification. Cyber Essentials is a government-backed, industry-supported
schermne to help organisations guard against the most common cyber threats and demonstrate their commitment
to security. We have held this certification since 2016 and recertify annually.

Taxation

The Group’s approach to tax is to ensure compliance with all legal and statutory ohligations. Argiva is committed
ta maintaining a transparent and constructive working relationship with HM Revenue & Customs and with local
tax autheorities in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The total contribution to UK tax receipts including
business rates, income tax, PAYE and NI paid by both Arqgiva and employees, totalled £54.1m for the financial
year {2022: £54.2m).

The Argiva Group is a primarily UK based infrastructure group. There are some trading operations outside of the
UK, however these generate less than 1% of operating profit and there are na tax planning activities taken which
seek to reduce the Group’s UK profits or revenues by transferring revenue or profit out of the UK. The Group’s
small overseas trading entities deal directly with customers in their area of residence and fulfil their tax
requirements in the local jurisdictions.

This report was approved by the Board on 21 September 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Scott Longhurst
21 September 2023
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Companies {Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 (the “Regulations”}), requires companies that meet
certain thresholds to report on the Directors’ application of their section 172 duty to promote the success of the
Company, as set out in the Companies Act 2006, along with stakehclder and employee engagement.

Section 172 Statement

The Companies Act 2006 sets out a set of general duties owed by directors to a company, including a list of
matters to which directors must have regard, which are set out in 5.172{1)(a) to {f}. During 2023, in continuing
to exercise their duties, the Directors have had regard for these matters, as well as other factors, in considering
proposals from the Executive Committee and continuing to govern the Company on behalf of our shareholders.
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Stakeholder Engagement Statement

Throughout the year, the Board has continued to ensure engagement with relevant stakeholders generally in
relation to its day-to-day business and particularly with respect to key challenges. Examples of the way in
which this engagement has taken place are set out in the table below.

i:%; A e e b s
Employees

Please see our Employee Engagement Statement below and Corporate
Responsibility statement (pages 38-40) for full details

We have good relationships with representatives in all relevant regulatory
bodies and engage regularly with Ofcom; the Department for Culture, Media
and Sport (DCMS); the Department of Science, Innovation and Technology
{DSIT); the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA); and
the Department for Business and Trade (DBT). We also monitor relevant
developments with Ofwat and Ofgem as regulators of customers of our Utilities
business, and we participate in consultations and consult with government
departments and regulators when setting strategy and making decisions that
affect the industry generally. Following the mast fire at Bilsdale, we have
continued to liaise closely with Ofcom and DCMS with regard to both the
individual impact of the fire and service recovery planning for the broadcast
industry more widely.

Quarterly reports to investors are published on our website and availabie to all;
an annual investor call is held, in which we review our annual results and invite
questions from investors.

Regulatory Bodies

Investors
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Customers Our relationships with our customers are very important to us, and we maintain

regular contact through account managers; Executive Committee members; and
where appropriate our Chairman. As part of our ongoing response to the
Bilsdale mast fire, we have sought to support customers who have been
affected and ensure continued delivery of services.

Suppliers Our Procurement team oversees supplier relationship management, with a

category management structure so that employees have relevant expertise for
each supplier. We werk closely to ensure positive relationships, seeking to agree
fair terms and conditions and ensure timely payment, through adherence to and
reporting on the Prompt Payment Code.

Shareholders Shareholder Representatives on the Board and committees of the Board report

back to sharehclders on the business and take their interests into account when
making decisions, while operating in accordance with their Companies Act
duties. The Group's corporate governance specifies a number of categories of
decisions which are reserved to shareholders, ensuring that the decisions
affecting shareholders are subject to the necessary oversight.

Stakeholders As part of our infrastructure projects, we engage with planning authorities and

local communities to foster positive relationships. Argiva’s charitable
engagement also seeks to support communities local to the areas in which it
operates. The Company is particularly proud of its community support activities
to assist members of the public affected by the loss of the Bilsdale mast. The
Company is also part of the Broadcast 2040+ coalition working with various
charities urging the government to commit to protecting essential and cost
effective TV and radio services in the longer term. We also engage with key
relevant industry bodies such as: the Digital Television Group (DTG), Everyone
TV, TechUK, Digital Production Partrnership {DPP) and Waterwise.

Employee Engagement Statement

1

tnformation

Regular all company updates are provided to all employees via Argiva’s Hub {intranet) and email
updates; Management conducts regular company-wide live broadcasts and hosts face-to-face connect
days throughout the year to update employees on performance, strategy and other key developments;
with opportunities for employees to ask questions in real time.

Consultation

Arqiva has active union representations through the Broadcasting Entertainment Communications and
Theatre Union {BECTU); strategic decisions which may affect employees (including business change;
pay; and terms and conditions) are discussed with BECTU representatives in advance of action being
taken. Similar engagement also takes place with the Argiva Employee Board {AEB), which is elected by
employees, and their feedback and views are taken into account when making decisions affecting the
workforce, for example in setting timescales and the content of communications.

involverment

Employees participate in annual bonus schemes which are based upon performance of the business
throughout the year, encouraging employees to contribute to the success of the business. The Group’s
cultural value of curiosity encourages new ideas and fosters strong relationships across the
arganisation, supporting overall performance of the business.

Common Awareness

Financial and economic factors affecting the business are described to employees throughout the year
during management broadcasts; regular email communications with business updates and through the
Argiva Hub.
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Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

Overarching Statement
This statement sets out the steps we are implementing to combat slavery and human trafficking. We remain
committed to further improving our practices in the future to combat stavery and human trafficking.

Organisation’s Structure

We are a communications infrastructure and media services provider, operating at the heart of the broadcast,
satellite communications, and smart metering markets. We're at the forefront of network solutions and services
in the digital world. We provide much of the infrastructure behind television, radio satellite communications
and smart metering in the UK and have a presence in Ireland, mainland Europe and the USA.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2023, Argiva Limited and its subsidiaries, Argiva Muxco Limited, and
Argiva Smart Metering Limited were part of the Argiva group with head offices in the UK and over 1,200
employees. We operate in the UK and Europe.

Argiva Limited {and its subsidiaries), Argiva Muxco and Argiva Smart Metering Limited each have an annual
turnover of in excess of £36 million.

Our Supply Chains

The Argiva Procurement team works in partnership with our suppliers, ensuring we meet our internal customer
needs. The Argiva values are core to how we interact with suppliers whether a high-volume preferred supplier
or one-time only supplier.

We have an exceptionally diverse range of services and goods that are required by the business and sourced by
our Procurement team including:

¢  Transmission — Argiva has numerous transmission sites throughout the UK;

e  Construction — Argiva undertakes a broad range of construction activities from small changes to the
cunstruction of new transmission towcers;

e  Maintenance & Repairs;

e IT software and managed services;

»  Satellite Capacity; and

e Corporate facilities {including corporate sites, stationery, recruitment, legal and professional fees).

Our Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking

We are committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part of our business. Suppliers are required to comply with our Supplier Code of Conduct, which reflects our
commitment to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and
enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere
in our supply chains.

Due Diligence Process for Slavery and Human Trafficking
As part of our initiative to identify and mitigate risk we:
¢ Aim to identify and assess potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
e  Try to mitigate the risk of slavery and human trafficking occurring in our own business and our supply
chains;
*  Monitor potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
¢  Where possible we build long standing relationships with suppliers and make clear our expectations of
their business behaviour;
*  Reguire our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and have their own suitable anti-
slavery and human trafficking policies and processes; and
* Encourage the reporting of concerns and support the protection of whistle blowers.
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Supplier Adherence to our Values
We have zero tolerance to slavery and human trafficking. We expect all those in our supply chain to comply with
those values and our Supplier Code of Conduct.

Our Procurement team, reperting into our CFQ, is responsible for promaoting and ensuring compliance with the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 as part of our supplier relationships.

Training
Having previously trained all staff in 2022, a refresher training course was rolled out across the business in
January 2023 and will be rerun again in January 2024.

Our Effectiveness in combating Stavery and Human Trafficking
We will use the following key performance indicators {KPIs) to measure how effective we have been to ensure
that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any part of our business or supply chains:
* Use of robust supplier selection process including supplier guestionnaires and compliance with Argiva’s
Supplier Code of Conduct; and
e Use of our systems to ensure that purchase orders and payments to suppliers are limited to those who
comply with our standards.

Steps taken during the financial year to 30 June 2023
In the past financtal year, we have taken the following steps to ensure that stavery and human trafficking is not
taking place in our supply chains, and in any part of our own business;

a) We continue to run our qualification process for all suppliers:

One Time Only suppliers {low value transactions of less than 3% spend in FY23) all use our standard
Purchase Order T&Cs, which includes a mandatory compliance clause covering Modern Slavery and
Human Trafficking Laws. Suppliers with ongoing relationships are all required to qualify via our e-
procurement system. This process includes background checks and either (a} confirmation of
acceptance of the Argiva Supplier Code of Conduct {which covers modern slavery and human
trafficking); or (b) demonstration that the Supplier has its own equivalent policies covering modern
slavery and human trafficking. Purchase Orders cannot be placed with new ongoing suppliers before
the confirmation has been given.

b} We continue to limit the number of active suppliers with Oracle to reduce risk. During the financial year
to 30 June 2023 we had 877 suppliers registered on oracle and have traded with only 764 of these
suppliers during the fiscal year {N.B. this figure has reduced from >2,300 in 2018).

c) We continue to use our “Speak Up” reporting website and telephone line to enabie people to notify
any concerns. These are overseen by the Internal Audit function and regular updates given to the
Group’s Audit & Risk Committee.

Statement

This statement is made pursuant to section 54(1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and constitutes Argiva Limited,
Argiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited’s slavery and human trafficking statement for the
financial year ending 30 June 2023.

Note: The signed statement is avaifable on the Company website at www.argiva.com
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

Ownership

The Company is owned by a consortium of shareholders comprising Digital 9 Infrastructure {48%), Macquarie
European Infrastructure Fund |l (25%), plus other Macquarie managed fund {1.5%), Health Super Investments
{5.5%}, IFM Global Infrastructure Fund {14.8%) and Motor Trades Association of Australia (5.2%). There is no
ultimate controlling party of the Company, as defined by IAS 24 ‘Related parties’.

In accordance with JAS 24, there are two investor companies which are related parties with the Group, by virtue
of significant sharehelding in the Group:

D9 Wireless OpCo 2 Limited (‘DY) (48%), a company owned by Digital 9 Infrastructure plc. The Company
invests in the infrastructure of the internet that underping the world's digital economy: digital
infrastructure. The number 9 in Digital @ Infrastructure comes from the UN Sustainable Development
Goal 9, which focuses the fund on investments that increase connectivity globally and improve the
sustainability of digital infrastructure. The assets DGI9 invest in typically comprise scalable platforms
and technologies inctuding (but not limited to} subsea fibre, data centres, terrestrial fibre, and wireless
networks. D9 completed its purchase of the Canada Pension Plan Investment Board's entire 48% stake
in Argiva in October 2022. Digital 9 Infrastructure plc is listed on the London Stock Exchange (DG19).
Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il {"MEIF I’} (25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquarie Group. Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il is a wholesale investment fund focusing
on investments in high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe. Macquarie Group Limited is
listed in Australia (ASX:MQG ADR:MQBKY).

Argiva Board of Directors

The Group’s Board of Directors is composed of ten Directors representing our sharehaolder consortium as well
as two members of the Executive Committee. The following Board members were in office during the year and
up to the date of the signing of the annual report and financial statements.

Board Committee Membership

A -~ Audit and Risk Committee
G — Governance and Remuneration Committee
© - Operational Resilience Committes

Mike Darcey, Mike has been a member of the Board since 2018 and was appointed Chairman in February
Chairman 2023. Mike brings a wealth of experience from his background in the technology, media

and telecommunications industry. Mike has held numercus positions in the industry
ranging from CEO of News International to COQ of British Sky Broadcasting Group. He

has also provided strategic advisory services to a range of clients in the media industry.

Mike has served or is currently serving on boards including Dennis Publishing (UK) Ltd
{Chairman), M247 {Chairman), Home Retail Group (Senior independent Director) and
Sky New Zealand (Director). He is also Chairman of British Gymnastics.
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Shuja Khan,
Chief Executive
Officer

Sean West,
Chief Financial
Officer

Shuja was appointed Chief Executive Officer in June 2022. Prior to this, as Argiva’s Chief
Commercial Officer since January 2020, he was responsible for all revenue generating
activities including strategy, regulatory affairs, product development and customer
experience and at the heart of the development of Argiva’s 10-year strategic plan, vision
and purpose.

He draws an more than 20 years of leadership experience in the technology, media and
communications sector, including the role of Chief Commercial Officer across 24 territories
at Cable & Wireless and various leadership roles at both Virgin Media and Liberty Global
Europe with a focus on driving growth.

Sean was appointed Chief Financial Officer in September 2019, having joined Argiva in
2015 as Director of Treasury and Corporate Finance.

Sean has a background in all areas of corporate finance and financing, and as Director of
Treasury and Corparate finance was responsible for all aspects of the Group’s capital
structure.

Prior to joining Argiva, Sean held senior corporate finance and treasury positions at the
immediate Capital Group {ICG) and LandSec and brings a wealth of experience across a
range of industries and financial markets.

Appointed by IFM investors and Motor Trades Association of Australia (joint appointment}

Scott Longhurst,
Director

Audit and Risk Committee Chair

Appointed to the board in February 2023, Scott has over 25 years of experience in
Infrastructure and Utility businesses. He was formerly Group Finance Director of
Anglian Water Group (AWG} and Managing Director of its non-regulated business until
2019. Prior to AWG, he was Chief Accounting Officer of TXU Corporation and CFO of its
regulated electric and gas businesses. Scott also held a number of financial and
commercial roles with Shell encompassing corporate, operating company and joint
venture activities across Europe, the Far East and Middle East.

He is currently also on the boards of FCC Aqualia S.A., EVOS BV (Audit Chair}, Infinis
Energy Management Limited (Audit Chair), and a Senior Adviser to Igneo Infrastructure
Partners and is a founding member of the Accounting for Sustainability CFO Leadership
Network.
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Arnaud Jaguin,
Director

i

Andy Macleod,
Director

Matthew
Postgate,
Director

Appointed by Digital 9 Infrastructure Limited

Arnaud has over 15 years experience in telecoms and digital infrastructure, with a
strang focus on fibre and wireless networks. He led D9’s acquisitions of Elio Networks
and Argiva. Within the team, Arnaud leads on investment analysis, portfolio
management and strategy, and engages actively with investors. He also sits on the
Boards of Agua Comms, Verne Global, Elio Networks and Giggle Broadband.

He began his career in telecoms M&A advisory at UBS investment Bank in London. He
then had a varied career in the industry with Level3 Communications (corporate
development and strategy), CenturyLink (marketing), RETN {sales operations) and Ontix
(finance). Arnaud holds a Master's degree in Finance from Sciences Po Paris.

Andy was appointed to the Board in July 2023. Andy is a professional Non-Executive
Director and industry consultant after retiring from Vodafone Group as Regional
Technology Director for the Africa, Middle East and Asia-Pacific Region. Prior to that,
he served for ten years as Vodafone’s Group Chief Networks Officer and as the CTO of
Verizon Wireless in the US.

Since the early 1990's he has held a variety of CXO positions in major
telecommunications industry companies and has gained extensive experience as a
Director on the Boards of both public and private companies including Eircam, indus
Towers, Vodafone Australia, ECI, Idex, Gfinity and 10Geo.

Matthew is a Digital and Technology orientated leader with extensive experience in
new digital businesses and with the digital transformation of existing organisations.
He is a Non-Executive Director of UK Strategic Command within the Ministry of
Defence and with a media technology Scale-Up. He also provides selective advisory
services supporting technology enabled businesses and digital transformation.

Previously Matthew was the BBC's Chief Technology and Product Officer, leading the
BBC's Design & Engineering division. Prior to this role, Matthew held various roles at
the BBC including CTO and leading the Internet Operations function, Business
Development Group and its Research & Development department. He started his
career at the BBC in product management roles and was part of the leadership team
that launched BBC iPlayer and was responsible for building the corporation’s world
leading mobile services. Before joining the BBC, Matthew worked as 3 consultant and
start-up co-founder.
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Appeinted by Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund |l

Paul Donovan,
Director

Susana Leith-
Smith, Director

Operational Resilience Committee Chair

Paul served as a Non-Executive Director at Argiva from 2018 to 2020. He was re-
appointed to the Board in July 2022 following two years in role as Argiva’s Chief
Executive Officer.

Paul has over 20 years’ experience in senior executive roles across the technology, media
and telecommunications sectors. Between 2014 and 2016 Paul led the transformation
of Europe’s leading cinema operator, Odeon and UCI Cinemas Group, ahead of its
successful sale to AMC Theatres.

Prior to this Paul, was CEQ of Irish Telecoms Group eir. His background also includes
senior executive appointments with a number of significant global organisations
including Vodafone where as a member of the Executive Committee he led the
Company’s emerging markets businesses.

Susana is a Senior Managing Director in Macquarie Asset Management’s Real Assets
business in EMEA.

She has a wealth of experience in capital markets. Prior to joining Macquarie Asset
Management, she was at Barclays, most recently as the EMEA Head of Leveraged Finance
and managing all transactions in the Telecoms, Media and Tech sectars.

Appointed by IFM Investors

Max Fieguth,
Director

Governance and Remuneration Committee Chair

Max is a Director at IFM Investors and has been on the Arqiva Board since 2017, He also
works closely with several other IFM portfelio companies including Manchester Airports
Group and Aqualia.

As IFM Max leads a team of Asset Management professionals responsible for
implementing value creation opportunities across the IFM infrastructure portfolio,
delivering global best practice initiatives and supporting the execution of infrastructure
transactions. Prior to joining |FM Investors, Max worked as a management consultant
with McKinsey & Company and on the Crossrail project with Bechtel. and prior to that at
Bechtel on a number of infrastructure projects.
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Executive Committee

{also includes the Chief Executive Cfficer and the Chief Financial Officer on pages 48}

Vivian Leinster
Chief Simpiification
Officer

Officer June 2022 from her previous
position in the Executive Committee
) as Chief People Cfficer, a role held
| since her appaintment to Argiva in
June 2020,
MS Amlin: Chief People Officer at
speclalist Insurance provider
‘ - Previously spent four years as
People Divecter at Bupa UK, and 10
vears in a variety of sentor geheralist
L and specialist HR roles at BT

\ - Appointed Chief Simplification

Adrign Twyning
Chief of Operations

Joined Argiva in March 2021 with |
experience in energy, retail, health !
construction and professional
services.

Dixons Carphone: number of senior l
operations roles leading Yarge-scale
operations and business
transformation I

- Senior operation roles at British Gas

leading 4,000 field operations team

Sarah Jane Crabtree
Chief Peopie Dfficer

- joned Argiva in October 2022

- BT: various senior HR roles including
HR director of EE after its acquisition
by BT

- Began her HR career in the Civil
Service as an MR consultant for the
Cabinet Office and 16 Downing
Street

Nicola Philtips
chief Legol Officer

- Joined Argiva in July 2023

- Parker Meggit: Deputy General
Counsel (UK and EMEA) and Director
of Legal Operations

- Other previaus roles include Director
of Legal for /TV Commerciai and
Group Marketing at ITV, responsible
for regulatory relationships and
commercial legal support

Dem Wedgewood
Chief Technology Officer

Gaurav Jandwani
Executive Director of Media ond

Brocdcast

Mike Smith
Executive Director of Smart Utilities
Networks

- Joined Argiva in June 2023,

- Previous role as Senior Vice President for Broadcast
Technology and OTT Playcut Experience at DAZN
Group respensible for product management and
technolegy teams

Prior to this was Broadcast and Operations
Technology Director for Perform Group

- Jained Argiva in January 2023

- Telia: Business Head, TV & Streaming at the leading
Nordic and Baltic media house

- Previcusly held leadership roles at Walt Disney and
Vodafane

- Joined Arqiva in February 2023

- Previously, led the Enterprise and Public Sector
business at Virgin Media 02, and before that was a
Managing Director at Virgin Media

- Experience in Insurance and Banking Services

I




Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Argiva’s approach to risk management is as follows:

- Argiva recognises that the effective management of risk is essential to achieve our business objectives

- Argiva adopts an Enterprise Risk Management (‘ERM’'} approach, which is recognised as ‘best
practice’ for top performing companies

- Managing risk is a core responsibility of management at all levels and is a key component of
governance and compliance

- Argiva aims to embed risk management principles into the culture of the organisation

Enterprise wide management of risk is important for Argiva to meet our corporate objectives and for us to
protect future competitive advantage. The strategic importance of risk management is recognised by top
performing companies and is an important part of good corporate governance. Argiva subscribes to the
Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing cur risk profile.

Argiva subscribes to Enterprise Risk Management and conforms to the intent of 1S031000. Argiva has also
adopted the 150 27000 series for Information Security including I1SO/IEC 27005 for Security Risk Management
which operates within the Argiva ERM Framework. Our statements and principles are linked to our process
through our risk management framework.
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The Executive Committee has responsibility for maintaining and updating their line of business risk register
which includes utilising the standardised approach to risk assessment and risk monitoring. The Group's
centralised Internal Audit and Risk function provides training and support to ensure risks are captured effectively
and on a timely basis. The Internal Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review and
consolidate the most significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly Executive
Committee and Audit and Risk Committee meetings. The Executive Committee makes recommendations for
ensuring the risk management framework remains effective going forward.

.%Gbpd"@ﬂtaﬁ&ﬁth&‘u#’iv*ﬁ%

Business Management: Senfor Executive Monagement: Audit.and Risk function / Audit

First defence is the day to day
controls and processes put in pluce
by monagerment to identify risks

aeid develop swtiating artions.

e b
Our new preducts do not
gain traction in the
market due to insufficient
investment in product
development, limited
market opportunity, they
do not meet customer
needs of have an
unsustainabie cost base
ultimately impacting
growth and longevity of
¢ the business.

There is a risk of
aiternative competing
technologies leading to a

; faster move towards non-
linear services and more
competition from

' alternative providers
leading to non-renewal of
centracts for radio, TV
and connectivity services.

Customer demand and
ability to pay reduces due
to high inflation impacts
as well as listening trends,

{Quarnterly review of the comorate
risk register 1o inciude review of
risk thanagernent polikces, setting
of risk appetite, monitoring
omplince afid reporting of
significant risks ta the Board of
Directors,

s

o mereuati 'w#\w%/v&
Qperating and capital
expenditure are budgeted 10
include investment to support
product development.

We maintain strong relationships
with our tustomers and engage
with them in the development
and product discovery phase of
new products.

The product development
process is performed in
increments {e.g. 3 months} with
checkpoints after each increment
to ensure market and technology
assumptions stiil hold.

Argiva acts to engage with any
relevant Government or
regulatory process which might
impact Argiva's business areas in
response to the development of
alternative or competing
technologies.

Argiva’s commercial teams
engage with customers around
pricing and ability to pay and
around renewal of services.
Prices vary in response to these
discussions which reflect market
conditions e.g. with media
customers on the

commitiee:
Independent business assurpnce
provided over the effectiveness
of the Group's system of iternal
ontrols and processes, grd
the effectiveness of the risk
ranagement framework.

Management has identified the following risks as the most significant business risks affecting the Group,
presented together with identified mitigating actions.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
customers and other stakeholders
such as government and Ofcom or
developments and opportunities in
the markets.

The continued focus of the
Broadcast 2040+ initiative seeks to
safeguard the terrestrial TV and
radio broadcast products that
underpin the core business of Argiva
and secure the longevity of these
contracts.

The annual budget includes
investment to support product
development.

Argiva has successfully launched
new products in the year for Arqade
and Argplex technologies to diversify
product offerings, with new
customers already contracted. New
product development is continuing
to support customers evolve their
business and respond to changing
preferences

Arqiva remains in dizlogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
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faster migration to non-
linear and IP delivered
services or structural
changes to the broadcast
market seeing players exit
or consolidate to fewer
DTT channels resulting in
lower cash flows for the
Group

Customers challenge
regulated pricing,
impacting long-term
contracts and returns on
existing services and
increasing volatility.

Impact of development of
alternative competing
technological solutions
against Argiva solutions

i such as a faster move to
non-linear and [P
delivered services away
from broadcast delivered
or on the utilities side
wider competition to our
portfolic of services to the
water sector. These could
impact customer
decisions to not renew
contracts or reduce the
scope of services for
broadcast or utility
connectivity,

Asset condition is worse
than expected due to
ageing nature of our
passive infrastructure.
Also, the technology that
our networking relies
upon is rapidly changing.
This could lead to
equipment failure or
obsolescence, service
outages leading to
penalties with customers
and requirement for

muitiplexes Argiva operates an
OTT or DASB and through its use
of transponder capacity.

Argiva seeks to support the
industry in instances

where changes could undermine
the long-term demand or ability
to pay.

Argiva has long-term contracts in
place with its regulated business
customers — this provides an
inherent level of protection to
this risk,

Arqiva works closely with the
Office of the Adjudicator {OTA) to
ensure that the OTA is happy
with how the system is operating
— this includes regular audits

and provision of any information
required and monthly meetings.

Argiva’s Vision 2031 strategy
seeks to broaden Argiva’s
ambitions and ensure that it can
remain sustainable. It sets out
key pillars of activities which will
drive a focus on building new
business areas and responding to
technology changes and
opportunities in the market. It
prepares the business to
embrace partnerships and new
technologies which go beyond
the historic focus on Argiva’s
infrastructure and enable the
business to access new
technologies.

Argiva acts to engage with any
relevant Government or
regulatory process which might
impact Argiva’s business areas in
response to the development of
alternative or competing
technologies.

Argiva acts to ensure that
operational performance is
retained at a very high-tevel and
that DTT, radio and DTH services
remain on-air in order to support
their ongoing use relative to 1P or
broadband alternative methods
of delivery.

Qur approach is to take a
balanced but focused approach
on asset quality and maintenance
combining an asset lifecycle
management approach with an
established strategic risk
framework to prioritise our

process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek
to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for
broadcast and award it to

maobile or move away from DTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSBs including the BBC Charter
process. We are currently engaging
with the DCMS radio review to seek
to ensure a long-term future and
clear plan for the radio sector. We
act to protect the longevity of the
services and seek to avoid a
Government decision to take
spectrum used for broadcast and
award it to mebile or move away
from DTT towards full delivery of TV
services via IP.

The strategic priorities of the Group
for the next 10 years put a focus on
the sustainable future of the
business including the development
of solutions for new and emerging
sectors to make the most of our
existing infrastructure platforms and
expertise.

Site inspections are completed with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

The Bilsdale mast fire and other
incidents have prompted us to
review lessons learned. Root cause
of incidents are established to
identify cases for greater
investment. Maintenance capex is
built into the long-term plan along
with increased investment in
security.
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greater than anticipated
capital expenditure.

Change in government
plans, poficy or priorities
could lead to changes in
licensing, spectrum access
and duration impacting
long-term contracts for
the business e.g. potential
funding model changes.

Adverse publicity
damages Argiva’s
reputation and customer
and business partner
confidence and its ability
to do business as a result
of:

- A major event or
incident impacting our
services;

Untimeiy delivery on
major projects;
Repeated unexpected
service outages;
Security breach or
cyber-attack on
networks; or

Major network or
equipment failure or
obsolescence or inability

maintenance strategy and system
owner reviews of platform health
assessed. Mitigation requiring a
Capex investment is prioritised
within the Capex budget
envelope.

Argiva maintains regular dialogue
with our stakeholders to ensure
the detivery of our programmes
are efficient, timely and to
specification, Where specification
changes occur, Argiva provides a
detailed assessment of the
potential costs of the scope
change and seeks an informed
recovery of these costs through
raechanisms in our contracts.

Arqiva’s assets and operations
remain predominantly in the UK
and therefare our business has
minimal exposure to the
changing relationships with
international markets.

Argiva acts to defend licences
and spectrum and seeks to avoid
changes in the number of DTT
muxes and licences which could
trigger a change or need to
review the regulatory framework

Argiva carefully engages with aur
customers to ensure that project
milestones are carefully managed
and management regularly
reviews the progress of all
projects.

Through continuaus
measurement of operationai KPls
and addressing shortfalls in
performance through process
excellence the risk around service
reliability is carefully managed.

The Group has in place a ¢risis
management plan for public
relations and external
communications to provide
support should there be any

Argiva has successfully agreed scope ;
and change requests on our smart

energy metering programme with

our customer demonstrating the

customer’s continued focus on

network roll aut.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or arcund the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process We are currently engaging
with the DCMS$ radio review to seek
to ansure a long-term future and
clear plan for the radio sector.

Arqiva has secured an extension of
its key DTT mux licences until the
end of 2034.

The launch of Broadcast 2040+ seeks

to safeguard the terrestrial TV and

radio broadcast products that ‘
underpin the core business of Argiva

and secure the longevity of these

contracts.

Argiva has been involved in WRC23
including direct lobbying and
engagement at an international level
throvgh membership and
participation in Broadcast Networks
Europe.

The Group maintains (SOZ7001
certification regarding information
security and holds periodic reviews
of the security environment and
training for employees.

Incident management, business
cantinuity and disaster recovery
plans are in place. The Business
Continuity Group continues to meet
regularly and will test and roli out
the plans.

Operational resilience plans have
heen enacted following the fire on
the Bilsdale site. Using other sites,
services were initially redirected
where possible to utilise other
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
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Lo configure to comply
with information security
standards

Information, networks
and systems
infrastructure may be
subjected to disruptive
and destructive cyber-
attacks through its
systems and third-party
supplier systems. This
could lead to a loss or
corruption of data,
penalties, impacting the
operational capacity of
Argiva, reputational risk
and loss of revenue and
cost impacts from fines
and recovery costs.

Critical transmission
structures or T
infrastructure supporting
key operational processes
could fail leading to
operational outages or
catastrophic loss of
service. Risk arising from
natural issues such as
adverse weather, flooding
and erosion, society risks
from security breach and
vandalism or maintenance
and structural routines.

The global computing
component shortage
bears an inherent risk of
delays through the supply
chain and therefore

. challenges to delivery
through operational
uncertainty and
complexity. This results in
delays to supply of water
metering devices and

major events. This is regularly
monitored and reviewed.

Cyber-attacks and trends in this
area are continually monitored.

The Group continues to invest in
our infrastructure and perform
site inspections and
maintenance.

The Group maintains an
1S0270001 certification regarding
information security, which
includes Cloud Security Services.
Employee training on information
security is mandatory and
quarterly reviews are undertaken
by external consultants to
examine the robustness of the
security environment.

System monitoring and scanning
are maintained as well as threat
and vulnerability management.

Arqiva ensures data is regularly
backed up and Incident
management, Business
Continuity Plans and Disaster
recovery have been established
for key sites and each business
area including establishing a
network of agencies to support,
regular site inspections and
corrective and preventative
maintenance. A Business
Recovery Working Group meets
regularly to stress test these
plans and continuaily review the
Group’s approach to disaster
recovery and operational
resilience.

Argiva maintains a robust
oversight of the delivery of our
major programmes. This includes
identifying the key personnel and
resources required for delivery
and waorking closely with its
suppliers and customers to
ensure that these requirements
are sufficiently available. A task
force has been established to
coordinate the global supply
chain {focus on water and energy
meters) with orders placed in
advance to de-risk supply. We
also seek to use muitiple device

98% of household’s service restored.
Argiva has worked extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with positive feedback.

There has been continued capital
expenditure in the year to improve
infrastructure. The Group has
continued with our digital
transformation programme with the
programme largely complete with
new systems launched.

Argiva has implemented detection
and prevention solutions on
networks.

Argiva has continued to pass our
quarterly security reviews and has
consequently retained 1SO
certification.

A thorough review has been carried
out of endpoint security user access
to manage who has access to our
systems.

Site inspections are completed with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

Disaster recovery plans have been
enacted following the fire on the
Bilsdale site. Using other sites,
services were initiatly redirected
where possibie to utilise other
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
98% of househoids’ service restored.
Argiva has worked extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with positive feedback.

The Bilsdale fire has led to a
strengthened inspection regime for
sites and structural maintenance
plans are in place.

The Group’s smart metering
communication network in the
North of England and Scotland now
covers 99.5% of premises. Argiva
continues to support the DCC on the
meter roll out programme.

Component orders are placed in
advance and contracts established
with multiple providers. Progress in
the year with improvements in the
supply chain and increased

56



Argiva Group Limited {05254001)

Annual Report and Financiat Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2023

subsequent risk to
customers on ability to
meet water leakage
{argets as well as cash
fiow delays due to
changes in customer
investment plans or
delays in contracting.

The risk that the Group
does not have an
alignment of skills to
support the future
requirements of the
business leading to being
unable to deliver the
strategic ambitions

The Group does not
have the right culture or
the right people in the
right piace at the right
time with the right

skills to enable execution
of our strategic plans

Failure to achieve long-
term cost targets
impacting the future
sustainability of the
business.

manufacturers and meter
praviders.

Argiva recognises the importance
of our people and seeks to make
Argiva a rewarding and enjoyable
place to work. The Group
operates a competitive annual
bonus pfan for employees and a
long-term incentive plan for our
leadership team, Additionally, the
Group operates formal retention
and succession planning in
knowledge-critical areas of the
husiness.

The Group has a People and
Culture initiative roadmap.

The changing customer and
competitive landscape as well as
our internal changes to

our strategy, grganisational
design, technology and
processes require a different set
of mindsets, behaviours,
capabilities and skills so Argiva
has established and launched the
Culture transformation
programme to drive our people
work.

There is ongoing monitoring and
detailed change control and
regular monitoring of third-
party savings initiatives at both
the Executive Committee and
sharehcider levels,

A simplification team has been
established to follow on from the
transformation programme
undergone and drive forward
efficiencies in our processes and
operations.

pages 75-76.

deliveries of devices in the financial
year.

Argiva continues to make progress
on its culture ambitions. The "Work.
Life. Smarter” approach to flexible
working proves to be a differentiator
to external candidates.

Argiva contirrues to investin its
people with 17 new graduates and
apprentices starting in the year.
Digital |earning tools are availabie
for all employees.

Partnered with external consultants
to review salary ranges,

The culture transformation
programme was launched in 2022
establishing the 3 culture goals to
support the achievement of our
strategy.

The strategic priorities of the Group
for the next 1 years put a focus on
the sustainable future of the
business including the development
of solutions for new and emerging
sectors to make the most of our
existing infrastructure platforms and
expertise.

The Group has alsa continued to
pursue its sustainability programme
to mitigate our impacts and support
the environments we operate in and
increase focus on climate risks facing
the business.

Details of the financial risks and details of mitigating factors are set out in the Directors’ report on
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Non-Financial Sustainability Information Statement

The aim of the Non-Financial Sustainability Information Statement (‘NFSIS’) is to improve transparency of
organisations’ climate-related risks and opportunities so that investors can make informed decisions on where
to deploy their capital. Argiva has produced this disclosure for its year ended 30 June 2023 in accordance with
Companies Act requirements s414, as a qualifying UK large company with over £500m turnover and over 500
employees.

Arqiva’s strategy is to become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero
across our scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2031. Implementing carbon reduction across Argiva’s activities requires
the development of various governance processes as climate challenge permeates across Argiva's strategic
decision-making channels.

We recognise climate change poses several physical (e.g. severe environmental shifts) and transition-related
{e.g. demonstrably moving toward a greener economy) risks and opportunities for our business and industry.
Argiva has identified several climate change risks and opportunities and management strategies, our progress
is summarised in this disclosure.

Part A - Governance Of Climate-Related Risks

The Chief of Operations, a member of the Executive Committee, is the sponsor for the Sustainability agenda as
part of our strategy and has overall accountability for climate change action within Argiva including regular
updates to the Board on the progress towards our climate-related goals. As the most significant physical risks
to Argiva are the damage to infrastructure and interruption or reduction in the quality of our services, our Chief
of Operations is ultimately responsible for managing the physical climate-related risks.

Reporting to the Chief of Operations is the Director of Risk and Resilience who manages the Sustainability team
and is responsible for developing the sustainability strategy and management of Argiva’s Sustainability
Programme.

Arqiva’s Sustainability Programme sits within the Resilience and Risk team but permeates the wider
organisation. Programme governance includes a Steering Group of senior responsible managers to provide
insight, oversight and sponsorship across the wider business, and a Sustainability Leadership Group who
consider the wider sustainability challenges Argiva should consider and how agreed actions are brought into
the programme. As well as establishing the detailed plans and targets to deliver the goals and developing
Argiva's sustainability capabilities, the Programme provides updates on any climate-related risks to the
Executive Committee as required, as well as progress toward the sustainability goals overall. The Programme
also manages Argiva’s sustainability reporting obligations including regular key stakeholder updates. Individual
projects agreed and launched under the programme will be incorporated into existing Argiva programmes of
work for delivery in relevant areas, to benefit from Argiva’s established project governance and reporting and
so that it remains an integral part of business operations.
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Below is an overview of Management's role in overseeing the delivery of Argiva's sustainability ambitions,

including management of climate-related risks and opportunities

Climate governance — Executive/Management responsibilities

Executive
nmplements the group’s climate slrategy f Proposes the cliinaes pedicy 10 the Board &
arl % on ciimatn trajectary
Reviows top-lovel risks. facing Argive and dobate noew risks ARESIng from quartorty roviews by
the business functions and the effectivencss of key controts i pHace to manage the risks.

Exeauttve in charge ot
Finance. Strategy and
Procurcmen:

Lxecathue in charge of Divisional Execarives
Crpcrations. Resticnoe: Brvharge of business
and Rivk uniry

Formal reporting to the Argiva Executive Committee is monthly, Risk reporting and discussion with our Board
takes place three times a year as part of the Operational Resilience Committee, which is a subcommittee of the
main Board. Climate-related risks and opportunities are documented in the Corporate Risk Register {CRR) and
flagged to internal Audit. Day to day management of risks is delegated to relevant managers in the business
with the Chief officers of each function accountabie for their fmanagement and a quarterly review of key risks. A
Risk Review Group with representatives from each function reviews and discusses the top-level risks to feed into

the ExCo debate.

The Board maintains oversight of climate-related risks through the boards and committees below.

Climate Governance - Board Responsibilities

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Sets the climate strategy and associated objectives

Ensures that the climate strategy is at the heart of the overall strategy of the company,
in accordance with the corporate purpose

Decision Making,
Governance & Oversight

(" Audit & Risk Committee {(ARC) , f
i WW:;*WWW”:?W | ; Expenditure & Resourca Mesting (ERM)
f sullllla m 'e‘::"'g N of “ | integrates the Group's dimate issues and climate i
’ P ts. Respansibl fnr' 8 ‘,oﬁl Jisch | objectives in its investment decision process f
o in external seports and the annual sccounts i o i
;ﬁ w:“'w"m Committes (ORC) the \ [{ Governance & Remuneration Committee j
[ Board in ing the effecth of Ardh s pprgach I f Ensumsﬂmnmmofﬂugfmfmmmdﬁc ;
{ and performance ; L ' i

Our governance has developed significantly over the year, we will continue evolving the governance and

decision-making related to climate-related risks and opportunities.
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Parts B And C - Identification And Assessment Of Climate-Related Risks, And Integration To Group Risk
Management

We recognise that climate-related risks and opportunities have the potential to impact our business and have
taken the necessary steps to identify and assess the potential materiality of these risks and the opportunities,
to maximise the positive impacts and minimise the negative impacts on our business.

This year we conducted an initial identification of climate-related risks and opportunities from typical critical
infrastructure risks, stakeholder views and industry peers. We engaged stakehelders across and outside of the
business to shape our sustainability goals and to understand and manage climate-related risks and opportunities
to better inform our business strategy and operations. This included the executive and key responsible business
managers to ensure they were an integral part of delivering change and governance, our customers to
investigate their appetite for re-engineering or replacement of technicat equipment to decarbonise operations,
and our suppliers in the decarbonisation of our supply chain. We also recognise that the availability and cost of
capital provided by investors is, in part, dependent on our environmental performance, and continue to engage
with investors on our environmental strategy through shareholder boards, and regular reporting including SFDR
{Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulations) and GRESB {Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark) as well as
NFSIS and SECR declarations. We are collaborating actively with Customers and sharing progress through
platforms including CDP {Carbon Disclosure Project) and ECOVadis.

To ensure management of climate-related risks is integrated into Argiva’s overall risk management process,
having identified the climate-related risks with potential to affect our operations we carried out a materiality
assessment to establish potential exposure {probability) and impact in each case, as well as proposing
management strategies of the risks for ongoing development/review using our Enterprise Risk Management
approach, which adopted IS031000 as the Enterprise Risk Management standard and 1SO Guide 73 terminology.
This ensures consistency of approach, measurement, and risk categorisation across the organisation, with the
value of local expertise and risk action plans using established processes, frameworks, and committees. Climate
change risks are reported to the Executive Committee and other key stakeholders accordingly. Read more about
Arqiva’s Risk Management Framework on page 52.

The Enterprise Risk Management process assesses risks based on the following, to ensure they are managed in
the right way and that the level of risk is understood;

e Risk Level: designates who owns, reviews, and manages the risk. The concept of Risk Levels relates to
who reviews and manages the risks in the register along with their criticality/significance to the
business. There are 5 Levels shown at the bottom of the graphic below. Five is the lowest/least
significant and one is the highest/most significant. Risks can be escalated if the impact or likelihood
becomes more significant or de-escalated if the risk is mitigated and the risk rating reduces. Risks can
be escalated through the levels if the Rating becomes more significant.

e Risk Rating: The overall Rating Score is derived from a combination of the impact and likelihood of a
risk occurring. In the graphic below the rating and associated RAG is determined from the combination
of (a) business impact on the horizontal axis (Very Low, Low, Moderate, High, Very High), and (b}
probability (<10%, 1-30%, 30-50%, 50-70%, & >70%) on the vertical access in each case. Argiva’s risk
model provides for a range of impact types including financial, Health & Safety, Legal, Project delivery,
Service delivery, Information security, Technology, business continuity, and Supplier management.
Each risk type has a defined rating criterion with a potential combination of factors, for example:

— Financial risk: Very fow represents <£5m impact; High represents £25m - £50m, and Very High >
£50m

— Service delivery: Very low impact represents technical breach of SLA with no loss of competitive
advantage or ability to operate the service; High represents one significant outage or multiple short
duration outages over a prolonged period, loss of competitive advantage {e.q. 10% increase in
delivery target delays) or loss of ability to operate the service; Very High represents catastrophic
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platform failure cousing muitiple service outages or significant loss of management’s ability to
govern and operate the service

- Environmental impact: Very Low impact represents damage not exceeding £100k, or inability to

recycle, or use of potentiolly hazardous substances; High would equate to severe environmental
damage with up to £500k requlatory costs, or total costs between £25-50m; Very High represents
catastrophic environmental damage, regulatary casts exceeding £500k, or tatal costs exceeding
£50m

— legal regulatory impact: Very Low impact represents local media incident interest with no loss of
customer or key institution confidence; High represents a materigl business risk resulting in notional
coverage aver muitiple months or international, high loss of key institution confidence, high increase
in customer complaints or customer notice to terminate the contract; Very High represents
prolonged international media coverage and major reputational domage or severe political or
industry hody repercussions.

These are the risks owned and managed by the Board. Principle risks and opportunities were assessed
at level 2 or above, so significant to the Argiva wide business but not yet critical. The Board are
responsible for reviewing these risks on a quarterly basis.

Level 182

Level 4 & 5

Proaranyne or funchonal
Frogram Lead or Teamleader
Dept HeadSemiar manager

The process used to identify, assess, and propose management plans for climate-related risks is broadly as

follows;

1.

Review climate-related risks using a combination of NFSIS guidance, a review of existing related risks,
subject matter experts, industry knowledge and stakeholder guidance.

Evaluate the materiality of the risks using Argiva’s Enterprise Risk Management model to assign Risk
Ratings and Risk Levels. This was considered over the short, medium, and long terms. Risk Scores have
been submitted for Enterprise Risk Management validation, further evaluation and ongoing
management with risk owners, and material risks will be reviewed regularly in the context of the ever-
changing business and physical environment.

Management of the risks has been assigned to the relevant risk owners and forums accordingly.
Reporting of the material risks will be managed in accordance with the Enterprise Risk Management
and the Governance part of this section, and through regutar climate disclosures and reporting.

The climate-related risks have been formally incorporated into the Enterprise Risk Management tool. As our
understanding of climate-related risks matures, we will continue aligning climate-related risk management
practices and adapt our management plans.

Cpportunities have been assessed on the same basis as risks, with the RAG status inverted (i.e. red=green, green
= red) to reflect the positive rather than negative impact.

Parts D, £ and F - Principal Climate-Related Risks And Opportunities, Potential Impacts, And Initial Scenorio
Assessment

This section describes climate-related risks and opportunities Arqgiva identified over the short, medium, and long
term, and their impact on the organisation’s businesses, strategy, and financial planning.

61



Argqiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Stalements — Year Ended 30 June 2023

We Lave identified six principal climate-related risks and three principal ciimate-related opportunities with
potential to impact our business.

Risks and opportunities were identified as ‘principal’ on the basis that they were assessed with a Risk Level of 2
or above using the assessment methodology above. Principal opportunities could improve not just our financial
performance, but also reduce our impact on the planet, and when working with our Customers and Suppliers,
enable these organisations to reduce their impact as well.

We considered the materiality of these risks over different time horizons to better understand the potential
impact of climate-related risks and opportunities on our business, we have yet to complete a more detailed
scenario analysis (e.g. actual degrees above government targets, level/rate of government and policy
intervention) at this time. The initial view of the management team on the impact and nature of the risk or
opportunity over time are noted in each section. This will be explored further in subsequent reports
incorporating any changing climate trends or science. For each risk and opportunity, we have described current
controls in place which help build resilience against the potential impacts on the business.

We recognise the long-term nature of some climate-related risks along with data modelling challenges and a
challenging macroeconomic environment make embedding financial planning assumptions difficult, but we
continue to address these challenges with our internal and external stakeholders.

The fotlowing risks were assessed and rated using the methodology in the ‘Risk Management and assessment of
climate-related risks’ section of this disclosure, and the impact/likelihood of the risk as it is understood today.
The levels of risk are expected to reduce over time as risk mitigations continue to be refined and implemented.

Physical Risks

These are the principal physical risks identified related to the impacts of climate change, both event driven and
longer-term shifts in climate patterns, and which may have financial implications.

We are a large owner and operator of infrastructure across the markets we operate in. This increases our
exposure to the physical risks of climate change due to the increased risk of asset damage or loss. Qur risk
approach and assessment are centred on the resilience of sites and network resilience and the supply chains
that support our operations. It is the initial view of the management team that the impact of these risks would
increase over time, but the nature of the risks and impact do not materially change. Under our risk governance,
controls and management strategies will be reviewed periodically to reflect this.

Risk Rating
Short Med Long
Climate Risk Risk term Term Term
Factor tevel | (o5 (510 | (>10

vearsj} years) years)

Damage to assets and infrastructure
Severe due to a higher frequency./sever-lty of 2 14 18 22
Weather | extreme weather events, including
fires, flooding, and storms

Risks: Interruption or reduction in the
Physical Severe q.ualsty of services becayse ofa 3 14 19 22
Weather | higher frequency/severity of
extreme weather events
Severe Supply chain disruption due to
2 19 3 23

Weather | climate impacts on key suppliers
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We anticipate some risk impact from physical climate at the target 1.5°C level and short term (<5yrs), but also
that these risks increase in severity under a scenaric where global policies to reduce global emissions are deiayed
or less effective and climate-related events are more frequent and severe including warming exceeding a 2-3°C
threshold. In all cases, as warming levels rise physical risks have an increased impact on our business over time,
as illustrated in the table above.

We have controls in place across the business which build resilience against climate-related physical risks. Given
the material risks assessed above, these are focused on damage to our infrastructure and disruption to services,
these include;

e Asset lifecycle management from acquisition, maintenance, adaptation, and replacement - policies and
guidance to incorporate assessment of environmental risk.

e Asset health is monitored regularly, and we have measures in place related to asset maintenance and
service resilience such as processes and teams dedicated to disaster recovery and business continuity.

e We run audits on significant assets to assess fire risk with installation of fire breaks and perimeter
controls to reduce risk of adjacent fires impacting Argiva assets

e We have deployed some remote monitering temperature and humidity sensors improving information
on our estate and reducing response times to potential system failure through system monitoring.

& QOperations monitor Meteorological Office Weather Forecasts daily and issue pro-active alerts to Field
Operations Managers to allow forward planning and protection of engineering resources.

® We also maintain and review insurance policies designed to mitigate the financial impact of physical
risks, which cover claims on asset loss and damage and potential service impacts.

To protect Argiva's supply chain against climate-related disruption, Argiva has strategic supplier management
plans in place with key suppliers that consider and seek to manage key supply and disruption risks. We
endeavour to create diversity of supply in our supply chains to minimise critical bottlenecks, and contracts and
service levels with suppliers to protect supply. As we address Scope 3 emissions with our key suppliers, this will
incorporate climate-related risk management.

Transition Risks

These are the principal transition risks identified associated with growing pressure and demands for action,
that could negatively impact revenues, and trigger an increase in taxation or energy costs. It is the initial view
of the management team that the impact of these risks has the potential to increase marginally over time, but
that the nature of the risks and impact do not materially change. The exception is the risk of rising energy and
materials costs which has already materialised but is expected to abate over time. Under our risk governance,
controls and management strategies will be periodically reviewed to reflect these possible changes and impact

over time.
Risk Rating
Short Med Long
Climate Risk Risk term Term Term
Factor Level
<5 {5-10 {>10
years] years) years)
_ Emerging carbon regulations and |
Policy & carbon taxation, leading to increased 2 15 17 17
Legal stakehalder scrutiny over our
performance
Risks: Third-pi?rty dependency impacting
Transition our ability to meet carbon targets
Technology | |, ding substitution of existing 2 15 17 2
products and services with lower
emissions options.
Market Rising price of energy (renewable and 2 22 15 12
non-renewable), and raw materials. |
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Argiva is a regulated technology-hased business that is highly dependent on energy. Our risk assessment
highlighted the cost of energy and raw materials (short/medium term} and the adaptation or replacement of
long-life (20-30 year} fixed assets (medium/long term) as the greatest transition risks, as we transition to a
reduced carbon economy. We are actively collaborating with our customers to understand how re-engineering
or replacement of technical equipment, emerging technaologies and ingenious ways of waorking can help us and
our customers realise sustainable ambitions and decarbonise operations. Emerging climate regulations and
carbon taxation, coupled with other transition risks could lead to increased stakeholder scrutiny with potential
revenue and reputation implications longer-term, but are considered less pranounced in the short term. Our
Risk and Resilience, Finance, and Legal teams monitor new or emerging climate-related regulation to understand
and respond to changing policy and regulation. In 2023 we made a SBTi {Science-Based Target) commitment
underpinned with targets to reduce our own emissions (Scope 1 and 2}to net zero by 2031 in line with reductions
required to keep warming to 1.5°C. This is part of our 2040 target to achieve net zero emissions across the full
value chain (scopes 1,2 and 3) which provides insights that reduce our exposure to transition risks. Cost increases
because of rising energy prices are being mitigated as an opportunity under ‘renewable sourcing’ below.

Opportunity impact

In 2023, we identified three principal opportunities for our business relating to climate change associated with
transition to a low-carbon economy, and including opportunities in managing our own transition. Exploiting
these opportunities could increase business valuation, access sustainable financing and improve product
efficiency, as well as enabling the reduction of carbon and other environmental objectives in our customer’s
markets. It is the initial view of the management team that these opportunities increase over time with
increased appetite for services Argiva can provide and market penetration over time.

Risk Rating

Short Med Long

. term Term Term
Climate Opportunity

Factor (All level 2) (<5 | (520 | {>10
years) | yearsj | years)

Participation in renewable energy programs
Renewable to lower energy purchase carbon emissions,

: o : 2. 2
sourcing and champicning sustainable procurement - o
in our supply chain

Introduction of next generation broadcast
; Products & o . . ot
Opportunities: Services and transmission solutions enabling carbon 13 17 .
i &

Transition reduction in our industry

To expand Argiva’s smart utility network
solutions business in our core utility
Markets markets and potentially expand into 15 L
adjacent markets. To make our products
more carbon efficient in themselves.

We are identifying sustainable power solutions that can be deployed at scale as part of our energy sourcing
strategy, potentially including a combination of investment in Power Purchase Agreements, self-generation, and
purchase of Carbon Trust certified renewable energy. Combined with Argiva's hedging strategy, this could
reduce cost and would improve predictability in uncertain energy markets. Procurement continues to develop
wider supply chain strategies to manage costs and drive diversity and competition in our supply chain to limit
our exposure to climate risks in our supply chain and drive cost efficiencies through re-engineering.
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As a leading UK communications infrastructure business, Argiva provides broadcasting and transmission
services, as well as smart network solutions for energy and water management across the United Kingdam. As
technology changes we are uniquely positioned to introduce next generation technologies into these key
markets, enabling carbon and other environmental improvements. We work with our engineering teams,
suppliers and customers to ensure carbon efficiency and cost efficiencies that can be derived from this are a
central consideration when replacing end-of-life equipment, which is now reflected in our investment
governance and approvals.

Argiva are developing next generation cloud-based, IP enabled services to aggregate media content from
different sources for distribution ta different platfarms using cantert delivery networks that can work alongside
traditional broadcast platforms, enabling customer carbon reduction through improved scalability, enriched
service aggregation, improved energy consumption, and reductions in maintaining a traditional fixed asset base.
Argiva’s smart utility networks improve management of water, electricity, and gas distribution in the UK through
smart metering and remote asset management. These optimise demand and distribution improving asset
utilisation and efficiency in these carbon intensive utilities. There is appartunity for Argiva to grow market share,
and possibility to move into adjacent markets that can benefit from the same intelligent information and
telemetry solutions. In our Scope 3 plans we are also collaborating with our suppliers to make our products
even more carbon efficient.

Parts G And H — Targets And KPis Used By Argiva To Manage Climate-Related Risks And To Realise Climate-
Related Opportunities

In terms of organisation level targets, Argiva has set its strategy to become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040,
with an interim target of reaching net zero across our scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2031. We launched our
Sustainability Programme in May 2023 with & small core team and wider virtual structure across Argiva to
establish detailed plans and targets to deliver on our sustainability goals, {o develop Argiva's sustainability
capabilities, and to assist in the identification and management of climate-related risks. These will directly
improve transitional risk mitigation and create awareness and improved management of physical risks and
transitional opportunities, working with the wider business.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Argiva Group Limited (“AGL”), registered company number 05254001, {the “Company”} and its
subsidiaries {the “Group”) submit the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements (“the
financial statements”} in respect of the year ended 30 June 2023.

The Company is a holding company with an investment in a group of operating companies, financing companies
and other holding companies.

The Directors’ report for the Company is set out on page 143.

Wates Corporate Governance Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2023, under The Companies {Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, Argiva has
continued to apply the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies {(as published by
the Financial Reporting Council {(FRC) in December 2018 and available on the FRC website).

Companies are able to adopt the Wates principles as an appropriate framework when making a disclosure
regarding corporate governance arrangements. We have adopted the disclosure in our 2023 Annual Report and
Financial Statements and we set out below how the principles have been applied over the past year.

PRINCIPLE ONE - PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP — An effective board promotes the purpose of a company, und
ensures that its values, strategy and culture align with that purpose.

Purpose/focus and activities during the year.

The Board and Executive Committee during the year have been progressing the strategy to build a sustainable
future for the Group focused on its purpose of “Enabling a Switched on World to flow” delivering critical
connectivity working in partnership with its customers across broadcast, media and utilities.

The following items were key areas of focus during the year:

Item Summary

Headline The Group continues to build on the Vision 2031 work in “"Enabling a Switched on World
purpose and to flow” with execution of strategic focus areas enabled by an operational model aimed at
strategy strengthening culture; deepening engagement with and empowering people; promoting
matters investment in products and technology; and developing and deepening relationships with

key stakeholders.

The purpose and cultural values underpin the Group’s strategic priorities to achieve four
key ambitions: to be the undisputed leader in UK TV, radio and broadcast; to transition
global media to cloud-based solutions; to be the UK's leading smart utilities provider and
to be an innovator of scalable solutions for new connectivity sectors.

The Board has overseen the progress against the purpose and strategic priorities alongside
the adoption of a detailed and robust long-term plan with appropriate cost and investment
assumptions all of which are subject to review on an ongoing basis.

Capital The Board has continued to monitor the Group capital structure to ensure its suitability for
structure the business needs. This has included the refinancing of the Groups £450m Junior debt in
September 2022 as well as Senior debt refinancing consisting of a $118m US private
placement issue which completed in June 2023 and a £250millien public bond issue which
completed post year end in July 2023.

Customers There has been a continued focus on strengthening customer relationships at all levels
including senior engagement with key customers and stakeholders. The Group has also
been working with customers on new collaborative projects such as the development of
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the Argplex product in Media & Broadcast and proofs of concepts and trials in leakage
detection and sewer level monitoring within the Utilities business.

People &
Culture

We want to create a culture where everyone has the opportunity to succeed and create
value. Argiva’s cultural transformation overseen by the Board, continues to drive our
cultural goals of Accountability {being accountable for the promises we make); One Argiva
{working together as one team); and Curiosity (striving to look at things differently to
discover a better way) with the aim of empowering its people to make good decisions while
acting with integrity.

With these cultural goals at the core of our people plans, we continue to invest in our
people. Group activities have centred around attracting and retaining the best talent with
afocus on an inclusive culture and diverse poputation. We have successfully improved our
Executive Committee diversity mix (66% (6) male, 33% (3) female, 33% (3) ethnic minority).

Another key focus has been on how we organise ourselves to operate effectively. This
includes equipping our people with the skills and capabilities needed for our business (both
now and in the future) through our skills managerment approach. This organisational focus
has also included development of our leaders to inspire and drive performance through
setting culturally and strategically aligned standards and development paths for
themselves and the teams. During the year we also continued to focus on innovative new
development approaches and methods through anline coaching and learning tools such as
Ezra coaching and LinkedIn Learning.

There is a continued focus on wellbeing and listening to our people’s concerns is an
important aspect of this. For example, we have provided access to information, support
and tools in response to concerns around the cost of living crisis. The Group approach to
benefits and pay also takes a holistic view against the backdrop of the wider socioeconomic
environment.

During the year, the Group also introduced a new partnership with Matchable to enable
our people to give back via volunteering opportunities in a flexible way.

Transfarmation

During the year, the Board has overseen the completion of the transformation programme
and, beyond that, the continued simplification and improvement of systems and processes
to enhance operational capability and bring efficiencies to the Group’s operations.

With the growth strategy in mind, a number of appointments/changes have been made to
the Group’s executive committee during the year including new Executive Directors for
Utilities and Media & Broadcast, a new Chief Technology Officer and a new Chief Legal
Officer.

Operational
performance

The operational performance of the business has been closely monitored by the Board as
part of the regular Board meeting agendas as well as via the Operational Resilience
Committee which focuses on key matters relating to operational resilience including safety,
health & environment, security, business continuity and sustainability.

The activities to rebuild the Bilsdale mast have been a key operational focus. The Board has
overseen the restoration programme, with key priorities being supporting the community
and returning coverage. The new mast began transmitting television services in May 2023.

Sustainability

Sustainability is a key priority for the business with three key sustainability goals: 1) to
become a Net Zero organisation by 2040 with an interim target of net zero across Scope 1
and Scope 2 emissions by 2031; 2) to positively enhance the environments we operate in;
and 3) to optimise the use of natural resources. Further details of our sustainability strategy
can be found on page 19 of the annual report.
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Within the year, the Group set out a sustainability charter, baselined its Scope 1 and 2
emissions and identified a series of possible initiatives that could deliver absolute energy
reductions working collaboratively with our suppliers and customers.

The Board has approved the establishment of a sustainability programme overseen by the
Operational Resilience Committee. The Executive are responsible for coordinating delivery
of Argiva’s plans, working collaboratively with suppliers and customers, and establishing
information flows and responsibilities across the organisation to embed the core
sustainability principles across the business. Argiva’s inaugural Non-Financial Sustainability
Information Statement report is available on page 58 of the annual report, setting out key
climate-related risks and opportunities.

Argiva also notes the Sustainability Development Goals of Reduced Inequalities and Peace,
Justice and Strong Institutions. The Group’s work on empowering and prometing inclusion
aver the course of the year has included creating and promoting employee resource and
networking groups, commitment to gender pay gap reporting and colleague led
community-based volunteering and charity support. The Group also drives ethical business
behaviour through its approach on preventing bribery and corruption, medern slavery and
human trafficking and ensuring effective and accountable reporting (outlined on page 44
of the annual report).

Values and culture

Arqiva’s values are embedded throughout the organisation, and adherence to them forms part of employees’
performance reviews and reward structure. independent surveys of both employee and customer engagement
are undertaken. There is also further engagement with employees via employee forums, an elected Employee
Board and BECTU {all described under Principle 6 {Stakeholders) below). The Group’s People & Culture team
monitors absenteeism rates and processes are also in place to encourage and monitor exit interviews. These
form part of matters reported upon to the Operational Resilience Committee, which reports into the Board.

PRINCIPLE TWO - BOARD COMPOSITION - £ffective board composition requires an effective chair and a balance
of skills, backgrounds, experience and knowledge, with individual directors having sufficient capacity to make a
valuable contribution. The size of u board should be guided by the scale and complexity of the company.

Chair
The Group’s corporate governance structure creates a clear separation between the role of the Chair and that
of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chair {who is independent of the Group’s Shareholders) is a highly experienced business executive having
held many senior executive roles in the technology, media and telecoms sectors and had heen a director of the
Group prior to his appointment as Chair in February 2023. The Chair has actively encouraged open debate and
discussion in the appropriate forums including main Board meetings which are scheduled to take place at least
five times per year, and also at Board sub-committee meetings (further detail on the sub-committees is at
Principle 3 (Director Responsibilities) below).

Balance and diversity

The Board has deep and relevant experience which has provided invaluable external industry input to assist
more effective decision-making in relation to a number of key matters brought before the Board. The Group
operates in a number of diverse and complex markets which require the Board to have a detailed understanding
of the relevant sector in order to arrive at informed decisions.

We acknowledge that there is a relative lack of diversity on the Board in the context of the wider diversity and
inclusion goals of the Group. The Board remains committed to developing a more diverse workforce and, as part
of the new appointments to the Executive Committee and Senior Leadership groups, improvements have been
made to broaden diversity and this will continue in the future. Details of the actions taken in the year towards
this are discussed in the Corporate responsibility statement on page 36 of the annual report.
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Argiva is actively working with Inclusive Employers in relation to diversity and inclusion. The Group recognises
that there is further wark to da in this area and continues to promote relevant initiatives. Page 39 of the Annual
Report provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees.

Size and structure

There have been various changes to the Board over the course of the year following retirements and
resignations. The size and structure of the Board remains under periodic review so that it is best organised to
meet the needs and challenges of the Group. Interms of Board size, a balance has been struck between ensuring
Shareholders are adequately represented via their nominated Directors but also identifying directors with
relevant industry experience to be appointed together with the Group's CEO and CFO {see pages 47-51 of the
Annuai Report for full details of the composition of the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management).

Effectiveness

The Group has been working on implementing the recommendations from an extensive external Board

effectiveness exercise presented in 2021. As a result:

- Thereis an increased emphasis on sustainability activities (now a key priarity that forms part of the Group’s
strategic objectives) managed by the sustainability committee which is overseen by the Operational
Resilience Committee which provides regular updates to the Board;

- Therevised Governance & Remuneration Committee reviews diversity and inclusion along with succession
planning and talent review matters on a regular basis reporting into the Board on these topics; and

- The remit for the Audit & Risk Committee reflects an increased focus in appraising strategic risk factors.

PRINCIPLE THREE - DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES ~ A board should have g clear understanding of s
accountability and terms of reference. its policies and procedures showld support effective decision making ond
independent challenge.

The Board has a programme of at least five principal meetings every year plus an additional day for strategic
planning, with additional meetings arranged for key projects or as may otherwise be required.

Accountability

Decisions which are within the remit of the Board or Shareholders are set out in a Shareholders” Agreement (as
Board Reserved Matters and Shareholder Reserved Matters). There is a Delegation of Authority policy which
sets ogut the responsibilities that are deiegated to the Executive and those decisions which must be made at
Board or Shareholder level. This policy is reviewed regularly and any revisions are brought to the Board for
approval. Typically, Board or Sharehoider Reserved Matters are raised at regular Board meetings and written
resolutions are obtained where otherwise required.

A Conflicts of interest paper is maintained and regularly updated with details of Board or Shareholder conflicts,
Any conflicts which may compromise independent decision making would be raised by the Company Secretary
at the relevant Board meeting; a Director having a conflict is not entitled to discuss or vote en the relevant
matter, or to count in the guorum.

Committees

The Board sub-Committees promote effective decision making and greater accountability and focus in relation
to each of the areas cavered by the respective sub-Committees. As a result of a review in this area, the number
of sub-committees has been reduced from five to three and the Terms of Reference for each of those sub-
committees has been revised. Pages 77-78 of the Annual Report provide an averview and description of each of
the three Board sub-Committees comprising: Audit & Risk, Governance & Remuneration Committee,
Cperational Resilience Committee. In addition, Capital Structure working groups are convened as required.

Integrity of information

The Board receives regular reports from the Executive and Senior Management on key matters for which the
Board has respansibility, including strategic projects; comprehensive financial reporting; key customer and
regulatory matters; updates on operational resilience (including physical and cyber security as well as health and
safety and environmental issues); details of major bids and performance of key contracts and market issues
faced by the Group as well a5 developments in technology and regulation.
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The Group uploads papers to a board portal for ease of review and administration. Other than in exceptional
cases papers are submitted in advance and taken as read at Board meetings, allowing any presentations to focus
on highlighting key issues, discussion and dealing with questions. The Chairs of each of the Board Committees
are aware of the importance of their position and during FY23 they have each met with key employees of the
Group to build relationships and gain direct access to those dealing with the day-to-day business of the Group.

PRINCIPLE FOUR - OPPORTUNITY AND RISK — /4 Board should promote the long-term sustainuble success of the
company by identifying opportunities to create and preserve value, ond estoblishing oversight for the
identification and mitigation of risks.

Opportunity

The Group’s Board maintains a focus on how the Group creates and preserves value over the long-term which
is principally achieved through a well-developed strategic and long-term planning process. The Beard keeps its
strategy under review which provides a forum to present future business opportunities. Appropriate
governance mechanisms are in place to ensure that new business apportunities above a certain value are
considered and approved by the Board.

Risk

The Group has a well-developed risk management process in place and continues to use its online risk
assessment tool, which is used throughout the business {which is described on page 52 of the Annual report}.
The Group’s Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review and consolidate the most
significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly Executive Committee and Audit
& Risk Committee meetings.

Arqiva’s key operatianal risks and mitigations are outlined in detail on pages 53-58 of the Annual Report.

Responsibilities

The Group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing its risk which has been approved

by the Group’s Audit & Risk Committee. This incorporates an internal control framework clearly defining the

roles and responsibilities of those involved. Responsibilities include the following:

- The Group’s Executive Committee takes recommendations for ensuring the risk management framework
remains effective going forward;

- Processes are in place for managing the principal risks and uncertainties;

- Theinternal control framework (described on page 52 of the Group’s annual report) confirms that there is
a monitoring and review process in place to evaluate risks at both business function and Board level.

PRINCIPLE FIVE - REMUNERATION - A hoard should promote executive remuneration structures aligned to the
fong-term sustainable success of a company, taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the company.

Remuneration

A consistent approach has been adopted in setting the level and structure of remuneration in relation to each
member of the Executive Committee to secure appropriate and fair levels of remuneration. Benchmarking and
advice from external remuneration consultants is obtained. Remuneration comprises of a number of elements
including base salary, an annual bonus and a long-term incentive plan.

Page 40 of the Group’s annual report provides mare detail and explains how remuneration is structured to
recognise and reward high performance for achieving targets in line with the Group’s sustainable success and
values. This aligns with remuneration arrangements for the remainder of the organisation where every
employee’s remuneration is made up of a combination of base salary and annual bonus {which, again, is linked
to personal performance and achieving financial targets in line with the Group's objectives).

Policies

The Group has delegated remuneration matters to the Governance & Remuneration Committee {which is a
committee of the Board). The Governance & Remuneration Committee operates in accordance with
documented terms of reference. The Governance & Remuneration Committee is committed to take into account
the pay and employment conditions of the Group’s wider workforce when making recommendations in relation
to Executive pay.
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The Group’s banus and long-term incentive plans are documented in writing and reviewed at least annually by
the Governance & Remuneration Committee and any payments made operate against documented
performance targets.

n addition, the Governance & Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the company wide pay
increase on an annual basis. As part of this process, the Governance & Remuneration Committee will assess
increases against certain criteria including taking into account other comparative pay metrics in the industry,
discussions held with BECTU, the existing and future financial capacity of the business, and also aligning with the
long-term sustainable success of the company. In the year to 30 June 2023, annual pay negotiations were
concluded with BECTU with agreement to go to a ballot of its members. This occurred in early July 2023 and
agreement was reached on the business’ proposals.

The Group has published its full gender pay gap report which is available on the company website at
www.argiva.com. The latest report shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with
improvements in both the mean and median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details
on why we have a pay gap, the reasons for the increase in the year and the actions we are taking to address the
issue.

PRINCIPLE SIX - STAKEHOLDERS - A board has a responsibility to oversee meaningful engogement with material
stakeholders, including the workforce, and have regord to thut discussion when making decisions. The board has
a responsibility to foster good stakeholder relationships bused on the company’s purpose.

Stakeholders

The Group’'s key Stakeholders include its employees; customers; suppliers; debt investors; Sharehaolders;
pensions trustees; and regulatory and government bodies including Ofcom, Ofwat, DCMS, DSIT, DEFRA and DBT.
Senior Management and the Strategy and Regulatory team work closely with industry bodies and lobby groups
and representatives of the various regulatory bodies, and the Board is regularty briefed informally and formally
on developments. The value of good relationships with local communities, in the context of planning
requirements, for example, is understood and focus is given to fostering these relationships. The Group provides
reports to investars and creditors as part of its listed debt obligations and conducts regular investor calls which
give the opportunity for debt investors to raise guestions with the Group. The Group’s procurement operations
function actively undertakes reviews of its supplier base to enhance its best practice in this field.

Workforce

Argiva communicates to its employees through a variety of communication channels including regular email
newsletters, updates over email and intranet directly from the CEO and local messaging from the Executive
Management. The CEO and Executive Management also regularly hold local listening groups in person where
possible. We support a hybrid approach to communication with the use of online events (including interactive
live Q&A sessions with Executive Management) and the reintroduction of in person events in particular via the
‘Let’s Connect’ series of events held at different sites to support our hybrid working approach. This hybrid
approach has been well received by emplayees.

The Group has active union representation from BECTU, as well as an elected Employee Board, and employee
forums throughout the different functions. The People & Culture team work closely with each of these bodies,
consulting on any proposed changes to terms; policies and processes; as well as seeking feedback on workplace
maorale, culture and issues of concern or interest to the workforce,

We run engagement surveys three times a year to measure progress against our business and cultural goals and
how we work. This information provides a platform for two way feedback which is acted an at all layers of
management in the business and is reviewed annually with the Board.

External impacts

The Group's Carporate Responsibility statement sets out, on pages 36-41 of the Directors’ Report, a description
of the Group’s focus areas used to ensure that it acts responsibly, ethically and safely, from a Corporate;
Community; Employee; and Business perspective. The statement also includes a summary of the Group's
approach to environmental factors. The Group’s Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement
on pages 44-45 sets out a description of Argiva’s considerations in this area, including supply chain impacts.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

In accordance with SECR requirements, the table below provides a breakdown of carbon emissions by scope in
accordance with the Green House Gas Protocol, along with energy data for Arqiva Group for the financial year
2023, in comparison with the financial year 2022.

: Year ended Year ended
Arqiva Greenhouse Gas Emissions 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Gas 1,900,630
. 1,772,197
. GasOil . B37.705 e
;f;;‘"f”e’gy censumption Electricity 201,465,319 207,524,329
Transport Fuel 6,862,592 5,414,256
Total 210,866,246 214,710,782
Gas 385 319
Gas Qil 149 129
L. . Fluorinated Gases (HVAC) 280 618
Scope 1 emissions in t/CO2e
Owned transport (fleet) 1,408 1,208
Fixed Diesel Generators 752 294
Total* 2,974 2,568
Scope 2 emissions in Market Based**** 40,000 8,943
t/CO2e™ Location Based 41842 40,131
Business travel (employee
owned and hire vehicles) 316 178
o . Public Transport and 470 231
Scope 3*** emissions in /CO2e | Accommodation
Water Consumption 29 21
Waste in Operations 5 5
Total 820 435
Total gross emissions in metric | Market Based™"* 43,794 12,946
tonnes CO2e (Scope 1,2 &3) Location Based 45,636 43,134
Intensity Ratio TCO2¢ / £m Market based method 67.2 20.5
revenue Location based method 70.0 68.3

Notes:

Emissions sources reported are where we have verifiable data, exceptions are below;
* Does not include emissions associated with portable generators.
** These figures have been derived in part from estimated data due to billing reconciliation

*** This is not a3 complete financial year 22/23 Scope 3 Inventory. We are in the process of establishing our full Scope 3

emissions in line with latest guidance, using financial year 21/22 as the haseline year for SBTi purposes where Scope 3
emissions were provisionally 89ktCO2e measured using the methadology described below. Full Scope 3 emission
disclosures will feature in future reports once our reporting methodology is in place to recalculate year on year.

**** The difference in market-based emissions since the last financial year reflects a move away from previously used

unbundied REGOs during the previous financial year in favour of focusing on absolute energy reductions with customers.

In parallel, from April 2024, Argiva has committed to purchasing energy with Green Certificates auditable with the Carbon
Trust and compliant with GHG Scope 2 guidance and CDP in Scope 2 Quality Criteria.
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Reporting methodology

The following standards and guidance are used to both monitor and report on our relevant carbon emission

sources

¢ Greenhouse Gas Protacol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard developed by the Warld
Resource Institute {WRI}) and World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBSCD) which can be
accessed via https://ghgprotocol.org/standards

e Green House Gas Reporting: Conversion factors 2023: full set, used to report on 2023 greenhouse gas
emissions. Access available via https://fwww.gov.uk/government/publications/greenhouse-gas -reporting-
conversion-factors-2023

e Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance March
2019. Access available via https:/fwww.gov.uk/government/publications/environmental-reporting-
guidelines-including-mandatory-greenhouse-gas-emissions-reporting-guidance

Scope 1 emissions are determined by measuring metered consumption of Gas and Oil purchases and top up
volumes of fugitive emissions in the reporting peried and applying the appropriate GHG conversion factors from
above. Transport emissions are determined by fuel card reports for fleet over the period, with conversion
factors applied by vehicle type. Scope 2 emissions are derived from metered consumption of energy and
apportionment by contract type to determine market and location-based emissions. This year the table shows
partial Scope 3 reporting, Travel and transport are determined from expensed consumption over the period with
applied conversion factors by vehicle type, and metered water consumption with emissions calculated with
conversion factors for supply and treatment. Metered data for gas and energy consumption is still subject to a
level of reconciliation in the last quarter. For these months, emissions are extrapolated/levelized from historical
consumption with any completed and measured efficiencies overlaid to establish the most accurate figure.

Our full Scope three emissions have been calculated for the previous financial year using spend over the period
(89ktCO2e). Full Scope 3 emission disclosures will feature in future NFSIS reports once the reporting
methodology is in place to recalculate year on year using the methodology established this year. The initial
assessment of Arqgiva's GHG emissions generated across our Value Chain (Scope 3) was made by applying
industry recognised methodolegies (GHG Protccol) and working with a specialist consultancy. The assessment
was made based on spend based emissions factors, overlaying pro-rated supplier emissions where available
from CSR Reports of top suppliers. Qur Scope 3 inventory was then aligned to the GHG Protocol Corporate
Value Chain methodology, emissions were apportioned to GHG categories as noted below;
+« Included: 1. Purchased Goods & Services — 16%, 2. Capital Goods — 50%, 3. Fuel- and energy-related activities — 16%,
4. Upstream transportation and distribution - <1%, 5. Waste generated in operations - <1%, 6. Business Travel —
<1%, 11. Use of sold products — 16%.
* (ategories established as low materiality were: 7. Employee Commuting, 8. Upstream leased assets, 9. Downstream
transportation and distribution.
« (Categories that are not relevant are 8. Upstreom leased ossets, 10. Processing of sold products, 13. Downstream
leased assets, 14, Franchises, and 15, investments,
e 12 End-of-flife treatment of sold products were not calculated in this initiol assessment but are likely to be jow
materiality.

Energy efficiency actions taken in the year

Establishing our environmental Strategy, Charter, and Sustainability Programme laid the foundations to deliver
on our sustainability ambitions into the future, This has already enabled some specific achievements below.

Scope 1 and 2 Emissions

Argiva has abatement plans in place for the reduction of scope 1 carbon emissions which are centred on
electrification of our fleet vehicles where practical, logistics optimisation, transition to low carbon fuel for
generators, replacing gas and oil central heating and minimising gas leakage from air conditioning systems.

Argiva’s scope 2 reductions are dependent on reducing our energy demand through re-engineering or
replacement of technical equipment. We are working collaboratively with customers who outsource services to
us to negotiate and formalise a rolling programme of work considering changes to the services we provide on
their behalf, and the practicalities of adapting or replacing parts of the enabling asset base.
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This financial year we reduced our energy consumption across Scopes 1 and 2 by approximately 4 Gigawatt
hours. For Scope 2, this was achieved through a combination of power reduction and reconfiguration of
equipment, installing more efficient technology, and switching off some legacy services. Scope 1 reductions
came from optimising building management systems and installing more energy efficient lighting.

We have also committed to purchasing 100% renewable electricity from March 2024, we are identifying
innovative sustainable power solutions that can be deployed at scale as part of the supply strategy, which will
feature prominently where absolute reductions can’t be made.

Scope 3 Emissions

We assessed our Scope 3 emissions against financial year 21/22 spend as our proposed baseline year, as it is
considered representative of a typical year. 70% of emissions from Capital & Purchased goods were attributable
to 26 suppliers, so we have started engaging these suppliers to continue firming our estimates and to set out
our Scope 3 abatement plans and methodology in more detail moving forward.
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Directors’ Report
Financial Risk Management

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group have been outlined previously in this report (see pages 53-
58). As a result of these, as well as the on-going business activities and strategy of the Group, Argiva is exposed
to a variety of financial risks that include financing risk, purchase price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and fareign exchange risk.

The key financial risks affecting the Group are set out below, together with a summary of how these risks are
managed.

) O D——— S
High inflation risk has an adverse The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its

impact on both operating and exposure to adverse impacts to debt as a result of

financing cashflow as well as the inflation. Inflation-linked swaps convert fixed or

financial health of customers and floating rate interest costs to RPi-linked costs. In June

suppliers 2023 the Group completed its accretion RPI collar
execution which caps future accretion exposure to
inflation at circa 6%.

increase in power costs are in part managed via pass-
through arrangements to customers. The Group’s
power contracts expired in March 2023, since then the
Group has entered new contracts at higher market
rates. The new power contracts secure power prices to
March 2024 to mitigate volatility for the coming year.

The total risks are minimised as a significant
proportion of the Group’s revenue contracts with
customers within core TV and radio products are RPI
index-linked.

The Group will need to refinance The Group mitigates this risk by the strength of the
at least part of our debt as it stablelong-term investment grade capital structure in
. matures and may need additional place. Qur BBB+/BBB {S&P/Fitch} ratings reflect our
financing to cover capital strong ability to service and repay debt from our cash
expenditure and certain other flows over a reasonable period of time, maintaining
expenses to support its growth debt with a variety of medium- and long-term
plans. The Group cannot be maturities, so that over time we do not have a
certain that such financing will be  significant concentration of debt due for refinancing in
readily available on attractive or any given year, and aiming to refinance debt well in
historically comparable terms. advance of the maturity date.

Breach of debt covenants and/or With regards to covenants, the Group maintains
a downgrade in our rating could financial covenant monitoring and meodelling, both
impact the availability of finance retrospectively and prospectively and maintains
or the comparability of terms. regular dialogue with credit ratings agencies.

Energy is a major compenent of The Group's forward power contracts have expired in

the Group’s cost base and is the year leaving exposure to entering new energy

subject to price volatility and purchasing contracts at higher market rates. The

significant pressure from energy Group’s power contracts expired in March 2023, since

price inflation. then the Group has entered new contracts at higher
market rates. The new power contracts secure power
prices to March 2024 to mitigate volatility for the
coming year,
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The Group is exposed to credit risk
on customer receivables.

The Group is exposed to
counterparty risks in its financing
operations.

. Ensuring the Group has sufficient
available funds for working capitat
requirements and planned growth
. and funding for the Defined
Benefit pension scheme.

Exposure to interest rate risk due
to borrowing variabie rate bank
debt,

A proportion of this risk is managed via pass-through
arrangements to custorers.

Power purchasing options are reviewed and
expectations of higher future power costs are built into
the long-term plans of the business. Sustainability is 2
key focus for Argiva including ways to reduce power
consumption.

Key revenue and cost milestones are set on larger
projects to ensure the financial risks of volatile market
pricing are mitigated. Regular monitoring of third
party-savings initiatives are reviewed at both the £xCo
and Shareholder Board levels.

Credit risk is managed through appropriate credit
checking procedures prior to taking on new customers;
and higher risk customers paying in advance of services
being provided. Performance is closely monitored to
ensure agreed service levels are maintained reducing
the level of queried payments and mitigating the risk
of uncollectible debts.

The Group carefully manages the credit risk on liguid
funds and derivative financial instruments with
balances currently spread across a range of major
financial institutions which have satisfactory credit
ratings assigned by international credit ratings
agencies. The levels of credit risk are monitored
through the Group’s on-going risk management
processes, which include a regular review of the credit
ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a
maximum level and term for deposits with any single
counterparty.

The Group maintains cash reserves and access to
undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast
requirements. As at 30 June 2023, the Group had
£43.5m cash available and £205m and £150m undrawn
working capital and liquidity facilities respectively
available to cover senior interest payment if required.
The Board censiders the availability and adequacy of
working capital funding requirements in conjunction
with forming its long-term financial plan for the
business.

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to rising interest rates. The Group maintains
a hedging policy to manage interest rate risk and to
ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows and
compliance with debt covenants. The derivative
contracts held are fixed rate hedging, split between
interest rates and inflation-linked swaps. The Group
has, however, elected not to apply hedge accounting
meaning gains and losses are recognised through the
income statement as fair values fluctuate (2023:
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£27.3m loss; 2022: £76.1m loss). Interest rate swaps
convert variable rate interest costs to fixed rate
interest costs while inflation-linked swaps convert
fixed or floating rate interest casts to RPI-linked casts,
which fluctuate in line with the RPI index as do a
significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts.

The Group operates from UK sites  Management regularly monitors the impact of foreign
and predominantly in the UK exchange risks and assess the need to put any
market. While some customer mitigating financial instruments in place.

and supplier contracts are

denominated in other currencies In June 2023 the Group issued 118m US dollar
{mainly US Dollars and Euros), the denominated private placement notes. At the same
majority of the Group’s revenues time, the Group entered cross-currency swaps to fix
and costs are sterling based, and the exchange exposure on this debt. Details of the
accordingly, exposure to foreign cross-currency swaps ate provided in note 24.
exchange is limited.

Internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors review the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control, including risk
management systems and financial and operational controis (see page 52).

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee, chaired by Scott Longhurst, meets at least four times per year. The committee
has responsibilities of oversight of risk management procedures, monitoring compliance and regulatory issues
(including whistleblowing arrangements) and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and
internal audit function.

The Committee is authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee of the Company in order to
perform its duties, and to obtain any external legal or other professional counsel it requires.

Meetings of the Committee are attended, at the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, by the external
auditors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and representatives from the business as
required.

Internal Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the work undertaken by the Group’s internal audit
function, assessing the adequacy of the function’s resources and the scope of its procedures. The internal audit
function agrees its annual audit plan with the Audit and Risk Committee and regularly reports its findings and
recommendations. The Group’s internal audit plan incorporates an annual rolling review of business activities
and incorporates both financial and non-financial controls and procedures.

External Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is respensible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s external auditor. The Committee makes an assessment of the
auditors’ independence and objectivity taking into account the relationship with the auditors as a whole,
including the provision of any non-audit services.

PwC were re-appointed as external auditor in 2016 following a competitive tender process. The auditors,
PricewaterhguseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning
their reappointment will be proposed at the Committee.
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The auditors have provided certain non-audit services, prinripally in relation to non-audit assurance. The Audit
and Risk Committee considers the acceptability of all non-audit services with the auditors in advance of
commencement of work to confirm acceptahility and ensures that appropriate safeguards of audit
independence are established and applied, such as partner rotation.

Risk

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for considering and approving the Group’s risk management
function, ensuring adequate resources and access to information for effective function, reviewing the
appropriateness of the Group’s risk management function, reviewing reports from this function and manitoring
management response to risk.

Governance and Remuneration Committee

The Governance and Remuneration Committee, chaired by Max Fieguth, is established to take a proactive role
in liaising with Shareholders to manage the process of appointing a Chairman of the Board, CEO and CFO as well
as Board level succession planning. This includes consideration of Board composition including skillsets and
experience required from Board appointees and ensuring potential appointees as assessed for possible conflicts
of interest and independence. The Committee also considers the succession planning for senior management,
taking account of challenges and opportunities and skills and expertise required by the Group.

Further responsibilities include reviewing the Group’s diversity and inclusion policies, overseeing, and setting
compensation parameters, rewards and bonus schemes for senicr management as well as determining and
overseeing reward strategies including consulting and advising on the Group-wide bonus schemes.

The Committee meets at least three times a year.
OCperational Resilience Committee

The Operational Resilience Committee, chaired by Paul Donovan, has oversight of the adeguacy and
effectiveness of the operational resilience strategies and procedures of the Group (including principles, policies
and practices adopted in complying with all relevant legal standards and regulatory reguirements affecting the
activities of the Group) and reviewing management performance, considering major findings of internal and
external investigations and making recommendations to the Board in respect of this. The Committee also has
oversight of operational resilience with regard to safety, health and environmental matters, cyber security,
physical security, business continuity, diversity and inclusion to the extent they may impact business operations
and sustainability. Arqiva have implemented a Sustainability Committee consisting of members of the Executive
Committee and senior leaders across the business to ensure that Argiva meets its environmental sustainability
ambitions and commitments. Outputs from the Sustainability Committee are fed into the Operational Resilience
Committee for Board level consideration.

The Operational Resilience Committee meets at least three times a year.
Equal Opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective
aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues, and the appropriate training is
arranged. It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled person,
should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a person who does not have a disability. Further information on
how Argiva supports its employees can be found on page 38.

Political Donations

No political donations were made during the year (2022: none).
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Charitable donations
The Graup has made £0.1m (2022: £0.1m) of charitable donations in the year.
Research and development

The Group performs research and development into new products and technology, the costs of which are
capitalised where they meet the criteria for capitalisation in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
research costs expensed in the year were £2.8m {2022: £1.5m]}. In addition, the Group carries out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of the bid costs unless
the development expenditure can be capitalised. The bid costs expensed during the year total £2.2m (2022:
£1.4m).

Development costs incurred as part of capital expenditure projects, which support customers’ contracts, are
included with the total project spend within property, plant and equipment. The Group's capital expenditure in
the year was £66.9m (2022: £98.5m) and includes capitalised labour of £20.2m (2022: £26.1m}. Other
development costs are capitalised within intangible assets. In the year, new development costs capitalised total
£1.2m (2022: £1.8m) with amortisation of £2.0m (2022: £2.5m) charged against such capitalised development
costs.

Overseas branches
The Group has trading branches based in the Isle of Man, the Channel Islands and France.
Events after the reporting date

Post year end in July 2023, the Group completed its issue of £250m public bonds. These bonds have a maturity
in 2028 and a coupon rate of 7.21%. Argiva Financing plc (a subsidiary of the Group) is the borrower of this
arrangement. The proceeds of this facility have been utilised to prepay the Group’s outstanding £90m ITL and
£172m EIB term debt.

In August 2023, the final stage payment of £16.0m was received from the insurers in relation to the Bilsdale fire.
At 30 lune 2023, this represented a contingent asset and has therefore not been recognised in the income
statement. This brings the total insurance proceeds received to date to £41m. No further insurance proceeds
are expected. To date, the Group has incurred total rectification costs of £45.4m including £31.2m in capital
expenditure for the rebuild of the mast and a further £14.3m of exceptional operating expenses in respect of
community support activities and restoration costs.

Dividends and transfers to reserves

Now Digital {East Midlands), a Group company which inciudes a non-controlling interest, declared a dividend in
the year of £0.4m {2022: £nil).

The Directors’ of the Group have not recommended a dividend in the year (2022 ni}).
The consolidated loss for the year of £596.0m (2022: loss of £634.6m) was transferred to reserves.
Going Concern

The Strategic report includes information on the structure of the business, the business environment, financial
review for the year and uncertainties facing the Group. Notes 20, 22 and 24 of the consolidated financial
statements include information on the Group’s cash, borrowings and derivatives respectively; and financial risk
management information presented within this report.

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
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generated cash flows, will continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity ta fund our current operations,
including our contractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt facilities established post year end, see note 30 for
further information. For this reason, the Directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.

Future Developments

The Group plans to continue in its commercial and operational business in accordance with its strategy. Further
detail is contained within the Strategic report on page 19.

Ownership and Directors

A description of the ownership of the Group and the Board of Directors holding office during the year and up to
the date of signing of the financial statements can be found on page 47.

At 30 June 2023, Mike Darcey was the Group’s independent Chairman and Sean West was the Company
Secretary. Post year end on 28 July 2023 Nicola Phillips was appointed Company Secretary, Sean West resigned
the role on this date.

For details on the background of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee please refer to page 47.
Details of the statutory directars of the Company are shown on page 145.
Directors Indemnities

The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which is a qualifying third-
party indemnity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force during the full financial
year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the Independent Auditors
In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

- So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's and
Company’s auditors are unaware; and

- They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company’s auditors are
aware of that information.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable faw).

Under Company law, Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed for the
Group financial statements and United Kingdam Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been
followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and
expiained in the financial statements;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern bhasis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group’s and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006,

The Directars are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

Scott Longhurst

Director
21 September 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Arqiva Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

« Argiva Group Limited's Group financial statements and Company financial statements {the “financial statements”) give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’'s and of the Campany’s affairs as at 3¢ June 2023 and of the Group's loss and the Group's cash
flows for the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006;

+ the Company financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” and applicable law); and

« tnhe finandial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financiai statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements {the “Annual Report"), which
comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2023; the Consolidated income statement,
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Consolidated cash flow statement and Consolidated and Company statements of
changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)") and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under 1ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

OQur audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

¢ For the Group Financial Statements we performed an audit of the complete financial information of three entities and the
consolidation. We also conducied audit procedures on spectific line iterns for 12 entities 1o ensure sufficient coverage. The audit work
performed achieved coverage of 95% of revenue and 98% of adjusted EBITDA (consisting of continuing profit before tax, finance
income, finance costs, other gains and losses and exceptional income and expenses). All entities have been audited by the Group
audit team and hence no component auditor has been involved in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

s Carrying value of goodwill (Group)

« Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets (Group)

« Valuation of defined benefit pension scheme obligation (Group)
» Recoverability of intercompany receivable balances (Company)



Materiality

o Overall Group materiality: £11,500,000 based on approximately 3.4% of Adjusted EBITDA.
» Qverall Company materiality: £264 000 based on approximately 2% of Net Liabilities.
+ Performance materiality: £8,600,000 (Group) and £188,000 (Company).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

The key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill {Group)

IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ requires management to We obtained an understanding of the allocation of goodwill
perform annual impairment assessments in respect of to cash generating units in management’s impairment
goodwill. The Group's goodwill is material, amounting to model and assessed its appropriateness.

£1 ,4574m (£1 ,3396m allocated to ‘Media Distribution’ We tested the impairment modeL assessing its

and £117.8m allocated to 'Smart Utilities Networks’), and | mathematical accuracy, the accuracy of inputs to the model
the impairment assessments performed over goodwill and the reasonableness of the assumptions applied by
include a number of assumptions which are subject to management in assessing the recoverable amount for the
management judgement and estimates. Our significant Smart Utilities Network cash generating unit. These

audit risk relates to the Smart Utilities Network CGU due | included the assumptions for revenue and cost growth,
to the lower impairment assessment headroom, and the capital expenditure and the discount rate used.
greater uncertainty around the future growth of the
utilities sector. Refer to page 105 and page 116 (note 4 —
critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty ~Impairment of goodwill and note
14 -~ goodwill}

We tested the cash flows and agreed these to the Board
approved long term plan, and also performed a look back
test to assess accuracy of historical forecasting.

We involved our PwC valuations experts to evaiuate the
discount rate and terminal growth rate used to calculate the
present value of the cash flows and confirmed these were
calculated using an acceptable methodelogy and concluded
that the discount rate and terminal growth rate is materially
in line with what we would expect.

We reviewed management's sensitivity analysis and
performed our own sensitivity analysis considering various
reascnably possible scenarios impacting key assumptions,
including forecast cash fiows, terminal growth rate and
discount rates. Our testing confirmed in the future cash
fiows management have recognised capex for sustainability
and future transformation costs.

We have reviewed the reasonableness of management's
disclosure in accordance with the requirement of IAS 36.
Based on this testing, we considered whether the carrying
value of the goodwill balances were adequately supported
by the value-in-use impairment model prepared by
management, and found there to be sufficient headroom.

Recognition and recoverability of deferred fax assets
(Group)

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets of We obtained management’s detailed workings which set
£245.2m (2022 £233.8m) with a further £505.8m {2022: out the various elements of the deferred tax asset, including
£478.4m) of potential deferred tax assets not recognised support for judgements taken on measurement and

on the basis that they are not considered to be recognition. The appropriateness of this assessment was
recoverable. There is judgement involved in the performed in conjunction with our taxation specialists. We
measurement of deferred tax assets as well as in their challenged management's assumptions in particular in

recoghition, which is only appropriate if the asset is relation to tax losses and the evidence available to support




accessible (based on applicable tax legislation and the
Group's capital structure) and if there are sufficient
probable forecast taxable profits. Refer to page 104 and
page 123 {note 4 — critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty — deferred tax and
note 12 —deferred tax).

their recognition, taking into account relevant tax legislation
and the Group's capital structure. We reviewed
correspondence with relevant tax authorities and with the
Group's tax advisors, and concluded that judgements made
were appropriate. We cbtained management’s forecast of
taxable profits and agreed those to the Board approved
long term plan, and aiso agreed the consistency of these
forecasts with those utilised in management’s goodwill
impairment assessment. The calculations of the forecast
taxable profits were reviewed, and an analysis of the
sensitivity of the utilisation horizon to variations in EBITDA
was considered. We further assessed the potential deferred
tax assets not recognised and concluded that only assets
that are expected to be available to the Group have been
recognised. Judgement relating to the unrecognised assets
wili remain under review and reassessed as the Group's
circumstances and relevant tax legislation evolves. We
have reviewed the disclgsure over the critical accounting
judgement in respect of deferred tax assets and we concur
with the disclosures made. As a resuit of our work
performed no material errors were noted in respect of the
amaunt of deferred tax asset recognised in the financial
statements at 30 June 2023

Vaiuation of defined henefit pension scheme obhgation
(Group)

The Group operates one defined benefit plan which has a
surpius at the year end of £51.2m (2022: £61.0m). The
valuation of the defined benefit plan obligation (£158.9m,
2022: £184.6m) includes a high level of estimation
uncertainty, comprising several different key
assumptions. There is a risk that an error within one or a
combination of those assumptions could lead to a
material misstatement in the financial statements. Refer
to page 105 and 138 (note 4 — critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty —
Actuarial assumptions used to determine the carrying
amount aof the Group's defined benefit plan liabilities and
note 28 — retirement benefits)

With the support of our PwC actuarial specialists we
assessed the appropriateness of key assumptions used to
derive the pension benefit obligation, including relativity to
our acceptable ranges based on market data, and
concluded that all of the key assumptions are appropriate.
We also tested the key inputs used by management's
expert to supporting evidence with no exceptions noted. We
reviewed the actuarial report and enquired of
management's actuarial expert. We understood how
management addresses the risk of the actvary’s modelling
accuracy and the controls in place for the modelling, and
nerformed aur own data validation checks. We also
performed risk assessment analytical procedures on both
the financial and demographic assumptions. As a result of
our work performed no material errors were noted in
respect of the pension benefit obligation recegnised in the
financial statements at 30 June 2023.

Raecoverabiity of inlercompany tecevable halances
(Compary)

The Company has balances receivable from a Group
company amounting to £4.6m (2022: £4 4m) as at 30
June 2023. This is considered a key audit matter as there
is consideration in the assessment of the recoverability of
receivables. Refer to page 155 {note 4 — Other
receivables)

We evaluated management's assessment of the
recoverability of intercompany receivables, including
compliance with the requirements of IFRS 8 and expected
credit loss methodology, and reviewed and indepandently
tested an assessment of the ability of other Group
companies to repay by comparing the receivable {0 net
assets of the counterparties. As the net asset values did not
support the recoverabiiity of the intercompany receivables,
we considered the assets held and confirmed that by taking
into account the liquidity of assets held that the
intercormnpany receivables are considered to be
recoverable.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in

which they operate.

Argiva Group Limited's business is carried out through a single principal trading subsidiary, aligned inte two customer-facing business
units; Media Distribution and Smart Utilities Networks, supported by the Group's Operations, Technology and Transformation and

Corporate functions. In addition, there are a number of entities which provide financing to the operations.




The impact of climate risk on our audit

As part of our audit we made enquiries of management to understand the extent of the potential impact of climate risk on the Group's
and Company's financial statements, and we remained alert when performing our audit procedures for any indicators of the impact of
climate risk. Our procedures did not identify any material impact as a result of climate risk on the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
tegether with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually
and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements — Group Financial statements — Company
Overall £11,500,000. £264,000.
materiality
How we Based on approximately 3.4% of Adjusted Based on approximately 2% of Net Liabilities
clefermined it EBITDA
Rationale for Based on our professional judgement, Based on our professional judgement, net liabilities is an
henctimark adjusted EBITDA is an approgpriate appropriate measure to assess the performance of the
applied adjusted measure to assess the Company and is a generally accepted auditing
performance of the Group, which focuses benchmark. A rule of thumb of approximately 2% is
on the underlying trading results. appropriate given that the entity itself is not a PIE.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group materiality. The range
of materiality allocated across components was between £0.04m and £10.9m. Certain components were audited to a local statutory
audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
nisslatements excceds overall materiality. Sperifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our audit and the
nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes.
Qur performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to £8,600,000 for the Group financial statements and £198,000
for the Company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £575,000
{Group audit) and £13,200 (Company audit) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

tn auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the Group's and the
Company's ahility to continue as a going concern.

Qur respensibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report.



Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accardingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except ta the extent atherwise explicitly stated in this report, any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears o be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required {o perform
procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or & material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies
Act 2006 have been inciuded.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and matters
as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic repert and Directors’
Report for the year ended 30 June 2023 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

in fight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditors’ repor that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualiy or in the aggregate,
they could reasanahly be expected ta influence the ecanomic decisions of users taken an the hasis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to the Communications Act 2003, the Companies Act 2006 and the UK Tax law, and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for
fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks
were related to management's manipulation of key performance measures such as adjusted EBITDA (consisting of loss before tax,
finance income, finance costs, other gains and losses and exceptional income and expenses). We have determined adjusted EBITDA
is the key metric for stakeholders, such as the Group's ultimate shareholders and lenders. It is considered that the most likely risk of



management manipulation of this metric is through the posting of manual journals and management bias in significant accounting
judgements and estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

+ Discussions with management and Directors, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations and fraud;

+ Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management and considering risk of management hias in their significant
accounting judgements and estimates as disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements;

» |dentifying and testing unexpected journal entries, including any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations;

s Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

» Reviewing financial statement disclosures made by management in their significant accounting estimates and judgements as
disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements; and

* As required by ISA 240, incorporating an element of unpredictability into our audit testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also,
the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting cne resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing
technigues. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We
will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling
to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report. In our engagement letter, we also agreed to
describe our audit approach, including communicating key audit matters.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

V). Counll

Nigel Comello (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chantered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

21 September 2023
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Consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
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‘ Notes to the Group financial statements

1 General information, authorisation of financial statements and Statement of
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Company statement of changes in equity
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. Notes to the Compan;/ financial statements

i 1 Argiva Group Limited accounting policies and other information

fass of preparation
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5 Other payables
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